
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT OFFICE 

10326 FAIR OAKS BLVD, FAIR OAKS 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 

6:30 PM 
 

 
The Board of Directors of the Fair Oaks Water District holds its Regular Board Meetings on the third Monday of 
each month at 6:30 p.m. The meetings are held at the District Offices located at 10326 Fair Oaks Blvd., Fair Oaks, 
CA 95628. The Board may discuss any item on the agenda and may act on any of those items. 
 
The Board of Directors welcomes public participation in its meetings. Public comments relating to matters within 
jurisdiction of the District, and not included on the posted agenda, may be addressed under “public comment,” both 
at the beginning and at the end of the meeting, subject to reasonable time limitations for each speaker. Please note 
that State law prevents the Board from discussing or acting on items not listed on the agenda. Public comments 
relating to matters listed on the agenda may be provided at the time when that agenda item is heard. 
 
Agenda items are numbered for identification purposes only and will not necessarily be considered in the indicated 
order. Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board by one 
motion, without discussion; however, any item may be considered separately at the request of any Board member or 
any member of the public. 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you have a disability and need a disability-related 
modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the Human Resource Administrator at 
(916) 967-5723. Requests must be made as early as possible, and at least one full business day before the start of the 
meeting. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR  
1. Approval of Minutes 

a. Regular Board Meeting of August 19, 2024 

2. Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of August 2024 

3. File Investment Report for the month of July 2024 

Page 1 of 132



FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA – September 16, 2024 

PAGE 2 
 

4. Accept and File Financial Expense Report for the month of August 2024 

5. Approval of Warrants  

6. Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of August 2024  

7. Approval of Board Expense Report for the month of August 2024 

IV. PRESENTATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE 
1. Letter dated September 11, 2024 to all candidates running for the FOWD Board of Directors in the 

November 2024 General Election, California Fair Political Practices Commission, and others 

V. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: OLD BUSINESS 
1. Update and discussion on the New York Water Main Project Phase I 

2. Update and discussion on the proposed merger of the SJWD and SSWD 

3. Update and discussion on FOWD Administration Building Parking Signs 

4. Update on the “Request for Qualifications” to select a new Special District Financial Auditor – prior 
Auditor termed out in accordance with District policy 

VI. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: NEW BUSINESS  
1. Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of August 2024 

2. Discussion and possible action on the Transmission Main Phase I Design Request for Qualifications 

3. Discussion on mandated Service Line Inventory 

4. Discussion and possible action on additional funding for 2024 expenses 

VII. UPCOMING EVENTS 
1. September 18, 2024 / SJWD Board Meeting / SJWD Office 

2. September 21, 2024 / Fair Oaks Chicken Festival, Fair Oaks Park 

3. October 3, 2024 / SJWD & SSWD Joint Board Special Meeting / SSWD Office 

4. December 3-5, 2024 / 2024 ACWA Fall Conference / Palm Desert, CA 

VIII. REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 
1. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA) 

2. Regional Water Authority (RWA) 

3. Sacramento Water Forum 

4. Other 
 
IX. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS & COMMENTS 

1. Budget Committee – (Sarkovich, Dolby) 

2. Technical Advisory Committee – (Marx, Petersen) 

3. Capital Improvement Committee – (Petersen, Dolby) 

4. Personnel Committee – (McRae, Dolby) 

5. Public Relations Committee – (McRae, Dolby) 

6. FOWD and SJWD 2x2 Ad–Hoc Committee – (McRae, Petersen)  

 

Page 2 of 132



Page 3 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.1a 
Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of August 19, 2024 

 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 132



Page 1 of 12 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM III.1a 
Regular Board Meeting  
Unapproved Minutes 
August 19, 2024 

 
District Attendees 
Chris Petersen 
Mark Dolby 
Misha Sarkovich 
Tom R. Gray 
Shawn Huckaby 
Chi Ha-Ly  
Paul Siebensohn 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
General Manager 
Operations Manager 
Finance Manager 
Technical Services Manager 

 
Other Attendees    
George Babcock   Visiting Customer 
Leon Corcos    Corcos Property LLC  
Charlie Solt    Visitor 
Roben C.    Visitor 
Carolyn Bramson   Visitor 
Richard Luna    Visitor   
    
Absent 
Randy Marx    Board Member  
Michael McRae   Board Member 
     
         
 
AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
• President Petersen called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• Visitor Corcos stated he would like FOWD to modify its parking signs to announce 
public parking availability after business hours and on weekends.  

• General Manager Gray stated that FOWD’s mission is to provide our community with 
an adequate and reliable supply of water, exceeding all drinking water standards, at the 
lowest reasonable cost. FOWD provides the community self-sufficient parking for its 
employees and customers with no negative impacts to the Fair Oaks Village. 

Page 5 of 132



Page 2 of 12 

“Providing public parking to the Fair Oaks Village is secondary to the mission of 
FOWD. Though important to the FOWD as neighbor and friend to the Fair Oaks 
Village, any significant or ongoing negative issues with public parking will result in 
restricting use to accomplishing the FOWD mission.” The Village suffers from a 
parking shortage, something that all new development should have taken into 
consideration.  

• Visitor Corcos responded that according to the County, the Village has sufficient 
parking; otherwise, they would not be open. He inquired what it would take for FOWD 
to add a sign that states parking is allowed after 5:00 p.m. and on weekends. 

• General Manager Gray commented that in the past, there has been improper use of the 
parking lot, utilizing vehicles for sleeping arrangements.  

• Visitor Corcos stated that the Village is currently suffering from a lack of parking 
spaces, and it will get worse once the Fair Oaks Recreation & Park District project is 
completed.  

• President Petersen inquired visitor Corcos if he was asking FOWD to replace its 
parking signs to reflect that parking is permitted after business hours and on the 
weekends. 

• Visitor Corcos offered to pay to have the new signs made. New signs will avoid 
questions and confusion to the public. 

• An unknown visitor inquired if the parking lot will be utilized by the public or by 
restaurant employees. 

• General Manager Gray stated that there is a lack of parking in the Village. Both Fair 
Oaks customers and restaurant employees are well aware of the after-business hours 
parking rule and make use of it. 

• Visitor Corcos stated that allowing parking after business hours and on weekends 
should not be a secret. 

• President Petersen stated that visitor Corcos’ request will be taken into consideration. 
• Visting customer Babcock suggested having a supplemental sign instead of replacing 

the current FOWD signs. 
• Visitor Corcos agreed with the idea. He requested a sign that clearly states public 

parking is permitted after business hours and on the weekends. 
• Visitor Corcos provided feedback on the Spanish style construction. He believes the 

Spanish eclectic style will dominate the Village. 
• General Manager Gray encouraged everyone to go to the FOWD’s website and 

familiarize themselves with the documents concerning the Corporate Yard Project. 
• Visitor Bramson expressed her concerns about having new signs posted. She is worried 

about people lacking a residence parking at 5:01 p.m., remaining there over the 
weekend, and causing problems for the community. 

• President Petersen stated this issue has occurred in the past. 
• General Manager Gray stated that people have abandoned stolen vehicles in the FOWD 

parking lot. 
• President Petersen stated there might be a middle ground and it will be discussed with 

staff. However, if FOWD moves forward with this, towing will be enforced; something 
that has not been done before. If problems arise, towing will need to be part of the 
solution. 

Page 6 of 132



Page 3 of 12 

• An unknown visitor stated that the Board has not lived up to what was presented on the 
Corporate Yard document. In a year’s time, FOWD probably experienced one parking 
issue. 

• Visitor Bramson introduced herself and expressed that the recall signs are upsetting 
and feels like an attack on the Board, it’s unwarranted. The water quality is exemplary. 
Rates are extremely reasonable. The Board has done  consistent good work. FOWD is 
like an institution, and she appreciates it and is in favor of the Spanish Motif. 
    

III. CONSENT CALENDAR  
  The following consent calendar items were considered and acted upon as follows: 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2024 

2. Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of July 2024 
3. File Investment Report for the month of June 2024 
4. Accept and File Financial Expense Report for the month of July 2024 
5. Approval of Warrants 
6. Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of July 2024 
7. Approval of Board Expense Report for the month of July 2024 

• Director Sarkovich addressed the issue about financial transparency. FOWD is one of 
the few public agencies that display absolutely everything. Financial transparency is 
presented on a monthly basis. This, along with the Board Packet, is posted on FOWD’s 
website. 

• Visitor Corcos stated that the financial aspect, although posted, is challenging to 
understand. The transparency he’s referring to consists of hiring a third-party agency 
to analyze if the 25% rate increase over three years is reasonable and rational. No 
independent study was done for the water rate increase or for the Corporate Yard 
Project. 

• Director Sarkovich stated that FOWD is a public agency, not a private business. The 
25% rate increase over the next three years is basically governed by Prop 218. Prop 
218 is very specific on how it needs to be advertised to the public and what type of 
analysis is needed. FOWD met every single requirement of Prop 218. This document 
is also posted on FOWD’s website. The specific reason there was a 25% rate increase 
was due to the transmission main. This project alone will cost about $30 million. 

• General Manager Gray stated that all this information is on FOWD’s website. Despite 
the 25% increase over a period of three years, FOWD remains the lowest rates in the 
Sacramento region. In 2025, FOWD will complete several projects. Once completed, 
FOWD will have $2.5 million above operating expenses to put toward the transmission 
main every year until it’s finalized.  

• President Petersen inquired about the SMUD expense reflected on page 15 of the pdf 
file in the check register for the amount of $15,342.17, specifically about the average 

Page 7 of 132



Page 4 of 12 

rate increase. He also inquired about Regional Water Authority (RWA) expense of  
$53,092.00. 

• General Manager Gray replied that SMUD rates have increased approximately 20% in 
the last couple of years. SMUD has a peak rate and  have also added a super peak rate 
that begins around 5:00 p.m. The $15,342.17 is a partial payment for a couple of sites. 
He also addressed the RWA’s expense and stated that this amount is a combination of 
various resources, and regional support received from RWA for the water efficiency 
program that FOWD participated in regionally. All these fees are reflected in one 
payment. He will report back to the Board to clarify if this is an annual payment. 
 
Director Sarkovich moved to approve the consent calendar as presented. 
Director Dolby seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, Petersen – aye, and Sarkovich – 
aye. 
Absent: Director McRae and Director Marx  

 
IV. PRESENTATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

1. None. 
 
  

V. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: OLD BUSINESS 
1. Update and discussion on the New York Water Main Project Phase I 

• Information only.  
• General Manager Gray provided an overview including that it will take 

approximately 84 days to complete.  
 

2. Update and discussion on the proposed merger of the SJWD and SSWD 
• Information only. 
• General Manager Gray provided an overview.  
• Director Sarkovich mentioned that SSWD has about $100 million in debt. By 

merging, FOWD will indirectly be liable for some of the debt. SSWD also has a 
larger population. If this merger takes place, there is nothing positive for FOWD.  

• Visitor Bramson inquired about SJWD’s reasoning for wanting to merge. 
• President Petersen stated that there are two main reasons: 1) the more water they 

sell, the more revenue they generate, 2) dry year supply reliability. SSWD has a lot 
of groundwater infrastructure and can provide aide to SJWD in a dry year. This is 
one of the things FOWD has been investing in—groundwater wells. FOWD always 
envisioned partnering with SJWD. 

• General Manager Gray stated that the Board Packet contains information about this 
topic and a fact sheet is available on the FOWD website 

 
3. Discussion and possible action on a request to form a FOWD Customer 

Advisory Committee 
• General Manager Gray provided an overview.  

Page 8 of 132



Page 5 of 12 

• Visitor Corcos questioned the reason for not having a Customer Advisory 
Committee. He stated that apparently, you don’t want the Customer Advisory 
Committee or you would have said we welcome that.  He also stated that according 
to SJWD, the FOWD buys 90% of water, so this is all about 10%. 

• Director Sarkovich provided an explanation of SJWD’s rate structure for water. 
• Visitor Corcos stated that having a Customer Advisory Committee will allow 

customers to provide their input and recommendations on budgeting decisions 
versus sitting in meetings. 

• General Manager Gray clarified that FOWD staff does not make decisions, the 
Board provides FOWD staff direction on what do to. There are many opportunities 
throughout FOWD’s monthly Board meetings for public input and the Prop 218 
process is exhaustive. FOWD staff is outlining for the Board that the FOWD 
process is robust and in some cases, more than what other agencies are doing.  

• Visitor Corcos stated that there is a huge difference between having the meeting 
where the public comes to give comment or having a group of rate payers and 
community members sitting down in back room bearing through; helping to make 
recommendations to the information FOWD will bring to the public.  He went on 
to state that just because FOWD is supposed to have 3 or 2 meetings that barely 
anyone shows up to because they are poorly advertised, that’s different. 

• President Petersen inquired about visitor Corcos’ reasoning behind that comment. 
• Visitor Corcos replied that there has only been three or four people attending the 

Board meetings he has attended. 
• Director Sarkovich stated that low public attendance is a sign of success. If FOWD 

had the highest rates in the region, the room would be packed. 
• General Manager Gray stated that FOWD is no different than any other public 

government process. Some of FOWD’s outreach is more robust than typical public 
outreach. Local government is set-up to have Board meetings seeking public input 
and the Board is elected to make decisions.  

• An unknown visitor asked if there is a downside to having a Customer Advisory 
Committee and inquired if this would be costly or time-consuming for FOWD. 

• President Petersen responded that having a Customer Advisory Committee would 
require additional time allocation for staff than what is currently spent to prepare 
for Board meetings. He stated that on average, the Board of Directors spend six to 
eight hours preparing for Board meetings. Each Board Member gets a stipend of 
$100.00 per meeting; it is essentially a volunteer position. This is money coming 
out of the District, in addition to staff and the Board’s time to participate in these 
meetings. 

• An unknown visitor inquired if the Board’s decision would be swayed if there is 
enough public interest to participate in a Customer Advisory Committee. 

• President Petersen stated that FOWD is very open and transparent with the 
budgeting process. The purpose of the monthly Board meetings is to solicit input 
and comments from the public. There has been hardly anyone that provides public 
comment when discussing the budget. It has happened, but it’s rare. It has never 
risen to the point of needing more engagement.  

• An unknown visitor shared her perspective and noted she recently found out about 
these meetings. She believes having the Board Packet online is only accessible for 

Page 9 of 132



Page 6 of 12 

the younger audience. If more people are aware of these meetings, maybe they will 
become more interested in participating. It doesn’t mean that the Board is not doing 
an excellent job, but maybe it will encourage people to be more involved. 

• An unknown visitor commented that he believes there is no need for a Customer 
Advisory Committee. The financials are always laid out. He is curious to know 
what percentage of FOWD’s customers are asking for a Customer Advisory 
Committee. It seems to be the 1% that is badgering the District, those involved in 
the “move the yard campaign.” FOWD is very transparent and doing a great job 
delivering water at a very low cost. 

• General Manager Gray shared his experience when he first joined the District in 
2004 and  there was a need for a Customer Advisory Committee. The District was 
under investigation by the grand jury. FOWD implemented things from that 
committee to get to where it is at today. We implore people to seek the truth. 

• Visitor Corcos commented that having a Customer Advisory Committee will help 
get the truth out. If it worked back in 2004, it should also work out now. 

• General Manager Gray responded that a Customer Advisory Committee was 
created in 2004 because there were issues to resolve back then. The issues being 
brought up recently are not the real purpose. The truth is that some people would 
like FOWD to move and take over the yard.  

• Visitor Babcock commented that there is absolutely nothing stopping anybody from 
attending these meetings. He shared his experience from 2015, when San Juan 
Water District (SJWD) was going to do a drastic cut of FOWD’s water supply and 
he began attending SJWD’s meetings. Visitor Babcock began attending FOWD’s 
Board meetings in 2017 and has only missed a couple on rare occasions. He stated 
that he is the only public attendee in most of the monthly FOWD Board meetings. 
He believes there is no need for a Customer Advisory Committee. 

• Director Sarkovich stated that the Customer Advisory Committee is a bad idea 
because there is no need for it. Numbers do not lie; one picture tells you a thousand 
words. FOWD has by far the lowest water rates in the region, this information is 
posted on FOWD’s website. He doesn’t understand how having a Customer 
Advisory Committee would improve these facts. FOWD is very efficient, it has 
expertise, and it has delivered. FOWD is very transparent. Everything of financial 
substance is posted online (the budget and financial audit). It’s there for anyone to 
see. FOWD has accountability. Every two years, at least two Board Members are 
up for reelection. This year, there are three Board Members running for reelection, 
it’s part of the democratic process. He stated that visitor Corcos is running a slate 
to recall President Petersen and Director McRae. In his opinion, this is abuse and 
overreach. There is nothing these Board Members did to deserve to be recalled. 
Recall is deserved when there is most egregious  acts of  public abuse. The Board 
decided to deny visitor Corcos’ request to move the corporate yard and build a 
parking lot as his motivation was driven by self-interest. This is the only reason we 
are here. Instead of the Board spending time to discuss and run a water business, 
time is being spent by talking about visitor Corcos—property owner and developer 
in the Fair Oaks Village. 

• Visitor Corcos stated that he doesn’t have the money to buy FOWD’s property, but 
somebody can. 

Page 10 of 132



Page 7 of 12 

• Director Sarkovich is happy Mr. Corcos has built a successful business. 
• An unknown visitor stated that the property belongs to FOWD and it’s not up for 

sale. 
• Director Sarkovich stated that when visitor Corcos decided to develop in this area, 

he was well aware of the corporate yard’s existence; and yet he decided to build.  
• Director Sarkovich decided not to move forward with any motion, as he does not 

consider a Customer Advisory Committee necessary. He stated that Mr. Corcos is 
not here for financial transparency or the low cost of water service. He stated that 
Mr. Corcos is here to move FOWD out of the Fair Oaks Village. 

• President Petersen stated he is not in favor of forming an oversight  committee at 
this time. He believes the Board meetings serve that venue. FOWD is very open 
and transparent with the budgeting process and welcomes input from ratepayers. 
FOWD has very qualified staff that run the organization. We are very lean and 
that’s why we have such low rates, but we also do very good planning. One of the 
things that attracted President Petersen to join the Board was the “pay as you go” 
structure, it’s great financial stewardship. The information in the staff report and 
meetings at FOWD are an opportunity for public input. The Board will take as long 
as it needs to take to be sure we are accounting for the interests of our rate payers. 

• Director Dolby stated that there is plenty of opportunity for the public to engage. If 
you want the information, it’s available. He already volunteers a lot of his time to 
prepare for FOWD Board meetings. He does not see the need for a Customer 
Advisory Committee.  

• General Manager Gray stated that as a public water agency, FOWD needs to stay 
within the mission of quality and reliable water at a reasonable cost. Sometimes, 
the discussion is about parking and real estate, but our mission, no matter who is 
on the Board, needs to stay on that task. FOWD does not get a lot of questions about 
water quality or water reliability. We get questions about  rates and FOWD rates 
are the lowest. Staff stand perplexed at what’s going on. 

 
VI. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: NEW BUSINESS  

1. Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of July 2024 
• Technical Services Manager Siebensohn provided a summary of the water supply 

report and addressed question from the public. 
• Visitor Babcock asked for an explanation of the Fair Oaks 40. 
• Technical Services Manager Siebensohn provided an explanation. 
 

2. Discussion and possible action on the “Request for Qualifications” to select a new 
Special District Financial Auditor – prior Auditor termed out in accordance with 
District policy 
• General Manager Gray recommended Board authorize the “Request for 

Qualifications” to select a new Special District Financial Auditor.  
 
Director Sarkovich moved to adopt the “Request for Qualifications” to select a new 
Special District Financial Auditor. 
Director Dolby seconded the motion. 

Page 11 of 132



Page 8 of 12 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, Petersen – aye, and Sarkovich – 
aye. 
Absent: Director McRae and Director Marx  
 

3. Discussion on Board direction for the development of a 2025 FOWD Annual 
Budget 
• General Manager Gray presented the proposed 2025 budget schedule and provided 

an overview of Board direction. 
• Visitor Corcos stated that FOWD is using “pay as you go” and he has been asking 

for two years if FOWD is spending millions of dollars for the Corporate Yard. He 
inquired if that money is in the bank ready to go. 

• Director Sarkovich stated that FOWD is still waiting on the building permits. Once 
acquired, the next steps involve demolition and temporarily moving the existing 
facility somewhere in our service territory. FOWD will not be spending much of 
its budget in 2025, this is a multi-year project. It will take approximately three years 
to complete this project.  

• An unknown visitor stated that an investment in the water infrastructure in Fair 
Oaks to maintain the quality and services of water is vital. It costs a lot of money 
to maintain and improve water quality. He believes FOWD has done its job 
effectively over the years.  

• Director Sarkovich stated that on an annual basis, FOWD spends approximately 
40% of its revenue on infrastructure. Year after year FOWD invests in the system, 
prefers to avoid debt and interest. FOWD currently has zero debt. In 2004, the 
District had debt. It was paid off and FOWD intends to remain on a “pay as you 
go” basis.  

• General Manager Gray stated that the water system needs to be safe and robust in 
order to produce reliable water. During his twenty years with the District, he is 
proud that on average, 40% of ratepayers’ money has been reinvested into capital 
projects. During this time, FOWD has also received over $18 million in grants. 

• Visitor Bramson inquired about the ongoing litigation with SJWD. 
• Director Sarkovich stated that it is about SJWD changing the rate structure, and a 

possible violation of Prop 26. 
• President Petersen clarified that this is the beginning of the budgeting process for 

2025 and  it gets adopted in October. 
• Director Sarkovich stated that there will be a public hearing on October 21st. It will 

be open to the public. The Board will vote on October 28th for possible adoption. 
• General Manager Gray stated that the Board publishes a schedule every year for 

adoption of the budget. On October 21, 2024,  a Board Meeting will take place to 
discuss the draft budget. On October 28, 2024, a Special Board Meeting and hearing 
is scheduled to discuss the draft budget. There are multiple opportunities for input.  

• Visitor Bramson inquired if these meetings will be held at FOWD and also 
questioned how they are being advertised. 

• President Petersen replied that meetings will be held at FOWD, and they will be 
advertised on the website and outside the administration building. 

• Visitor Corcos inquired if these dates will be in the bills. 

Page 12 of 132



Page 9 of 12 

• Director Sarkovich stated that FOWD plans to send announcements regarding 
October 21st and 28th to publicize broadly, in addition to the public knowledge of 
the meetings and website. 

• General Manager Gray stated that when the rates are adjusted, there is a mailing 
that goes out to every customer (Prop 218). This is about a $20,000 expense. 

• Director Sarkovich stated that he does not want to be accused of approving the 
budget without public input. A mailing will ensure that the public is aware of what 
is being proposed for the 2025 budget so they can clearly see that rates are not going 
through the roof and there will be no new debt. He would like to see public outreach 
for the October 21st and 28th  dates to rate payers about the budget process. 

• President Petersen agreed with Director Sarkovich’s proposal. 
• Director Sarkovich stated that he would like a simple letter sent to customers about 

what is being proposed with a summary of the staff report. 
• Director Dolby also supports this idea. 
• Director Sarkovich stated that the staff has direction from the Board that there will 

be some public outreach in addition to the other points in the staff report. 
 

4. Discussion and possible action on additional funding for 2024 expenses 
• Finance Manager Ha-Ly recommended for the Board to authorize a transfer of 

$18,800 from the contingency fund to cover 2024 expenses and provided a 
summary of each expense. 

• Director Sarkovich and General Manager Gray provided an overview of how the 
contingency budget works. 

 
Director Sarkovich moved to authorize the transfer $18,800 from the contingency fund 
to cover 2024 expenses as presented.  
Director Dolby seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, Petersen – aye, and Sarkovich – 
aye. 
Absent: Director McRae and Director Marx  

 
VII. UPCOMING EVENTS 
 

1. August 26, 2024 / SJWD Special Board Meeting / SJWD Office 
 

2. August 29, 2024 / SJWD Special Board Meeting / SJWD Office 
 

3. September 9-12, 2024 / 2024 CSDA Annual Conference / Indian Wells, CA 
 

4. December 3-5, 2024 / 2024 ACWA Fall Conference / Palm Desert, CA 
 

VIII. REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 
 

1. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA) 
• Information only. General Manager Gray provided an overview.  

Page 13 of 132



Page 10 of 12 

• President Petersen provided his view on SGA’s monthly salary schedule. He 
believes these salary ranges seem really high. He also clarified that his company 
has no contract with FOWD; there is no conflict of interest. 
 

2. Regional Water Authority (RWA) 
• None. 

 
3. Sacramento Water Forum 

• None. 
 

4. Other 
• None. 

IX. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS & COMMENTS 
1. Budget Committee – (Sarkovich, Dolby) 

• None. 
 

2. Technical Advisory Committee – (Marx, Petersen) 
• None.  

 
3. Capital Improvement Committee – (Petersen, Dolby)  

• None.  
 

4. Personnel Committee – (McRae, Dolby) 
• None.  
 

5. Public Relations Committee – (McRae, Dolby) 
• None.  

 
6. FOWD and SJWD 2x2 Ad-Hoc Committee – (McRae, Petersen)  

• None. 
 

7. FOWD and CWD 2x2 Ad-Hoc Committee – (McRae, Marx) 
• None. 

 
8. FOWD Field Services Center Ad-Hoc Committee – (Sarkovich, Petersen) 

• None. 
 

X. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Maintenance Work Report 

• Report provided.  
 

2. Capital Projects Status Report 
• Report provided. 

 

Page 14 of 132



Page 11 of 12 

3. Authorizations of Additional Funding 
• Report provided. 

 
4. Water Transfer Status Report 

• None. 
 

5. Claims Against District 
• Report provided. 

 
6. Employee Update 

• General Manager Gray stated that FOWD lost its Construction Inspector to another 
entity and two field staff were promoted. 

 
7. Water Issues – Update on Regional Involvement 

• None.  
 

8. Other 
• Report provided. 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• Visiting customer Babcock stated he would like to draw attention to Agenda Item X.2 
– Capital Projects Report. It’s there on the FOWD website for the public to review and 
it lays everything out. 

• An unknown visitor believed that a legitimate issue was brought up earlier about Fair 
Oaks parking and questioned if this is a County issue. He is aware this is not a FOWD 
issue. 

• President Petersen stated that Fair Oaks is not an incorporated city, the County does 
approve all the projects, including the development of the park (Fair Oaks Village). 

• General Manager Gray stated that in recent developments, municipalities are  
implementing social engineering, they want people to use public transportation and 
walk. This results in what is currently happening with the Fair Oaks Village – lack of 
parking. FOWD hopes to be the best neighbor one could have. 

President Petersen closed the open session meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
President Petersen opened the closed session meeting at 8:38 p.m. 
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54954 
AND 54956 
1. Conference with legal counsel on existing litigation; Government Code Sections 

54954.5 and 54956.9; Citrus Heights Water District & Fair Oaks Water District v. San 
Juan Water District 
 

2. Conference on Anticipated Litigation; Government Code Section 54956.9(d) – two 
cases 

President Petersen closed the closed session meeting at 9:45 p.m.  

Page 15 of 132



Page 12 of 12 

President Petersen reopened the meeting to the public at 9:45 p.m. 
 

XIII. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
• None. 
 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENT 
• None. 

 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business to come before the Board, President Petersen adjourned the 
meeting at 9:45 p.m. 
 

Page 16 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.2 
Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of August 2024 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 17 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM III.2 
REGULAR Board Meeting September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Chi Ha-Ly 
Date: September 6, 2024 
Subject: Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of August 2024 

Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Discussion: 
Attached you will find the Treasurer’s report for the month of August 2024. 
 
Policy Implications: 
None. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 

Page 18 of 132



Page 19 of 132



FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Check Register

August 2024

Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description
General Expenses

50891 8/7/2024 AVALON CUSTODIAL CARE 1,700.00$          Janitorial Services
50892 8/7/2024 STAFF 164.40               Certifications
50893 8/7/2024 DITCH WITCH WEST 2,467.53            Equipment Repair
50894 8/7/2024 ELEVATOR TECHNOLOGY, INC. 316.00               Elevator Maintenance
50895 8/7/2024 FUSE 3 COMMUNICATIONS 6,695.00            IT Consulting
50896 8/7/2024 CUSTOMER 102.82               Customer Refund
50897 8/7/2024 INTEGRITY DATA INC. 38.20                 Dues & Subscription
50898 8/7/2024 CUSTOMER 102.51               Customer Refund
50899 8/7/2024 OLD VILLAGE LANDSCAPING, INC. 655.00               District Site Maintenance
50900 8/7/2024 P G & E 35.25                 Utilities
50901 8/7/2024 CUSTOMER 240.91               Customer Refund
50902 8/7/2024 SMUD 15,868.91          Utilities
50903 8/7/2024 TPX COMMUNICATIONS 7,262.94            Communications
50904 8/7/2024 SMUD 4,498.51            Utilities
50905 8/8/2024 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 100.00               Wage Garnishment
50906 8/8/2024 MFS 529 SAVING PLAN 175.00               529 Education Fund
50907 8/14/2024 AT&T MOBILITY 1,136.50            Communications
50908 8/14/2024 BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS 1,381.55            Printing Costs
50909 8/14/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 416.50               Inspection
50910 8/14/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 126.70               Utilities
50911 8/14/2024 DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC. 933.19               Software-AutoCAD
50912 8/14/2024 CUSTOMER 93.93                 Customer Refund
50913 8/14/2024 STAFF 19.27                 Employee Recognition (Reissued of Check #50415)
50914 8/14/2024 KASL CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. 18,783.02          Engineering Services-Skyway, New York, and Northridge
50915 8/14/2024 CUSTOMER 272.97               Customer Refund
50916 8/14/2024 OLD VILLAGE LANDSCAPING, INC. 531.75               Irrigation Repairs
50917 8/14/2024 CUSTOMER 50.00                 Clothes Washer Rebate
50918 8/14/2024 WASTE MANAGEMENT 611.19               Utilities
50919 8/14/2024 BARE BONES WORKWEAR 219.81               Uniforms
50920 8/14/2024 BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS 1,126.39            Printing Costs
50921 8/14/2024 CUSTOMER 350.00               Toilet Rebate
50922 8/14/2024 PIRTEK HOSES & ASSEMBLIES 950.30               Equipment Repair
50924 8/21/2024 ECO-CHEK COMPLIANCE 966.37               Air Quality

Page 1 of 4
Page 20 of 132



Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description
50925 8/21/2024 M&M BACKFLOW & METER MAINTENANCE 1,040.00            Meter Testing Service
50926 8/21/2024 SWRCB-DWOCP 120.00               Training/Certifications
50927 8/21/2024 STAFF 145.00               Training/Certifications
50928 8/22/2024 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 100.00               Wage Garnishment
50929 8/22/2024 MFS 529 SAVING PLAN 175.00               529 Education Fund
50930 8/28/2024 SMUD 5,000.00            Corporate Yard Deposit
50931 8/28/2024 A. TEICHERT & SON, INC. 1,204.77            Sand & Aggregate
50932 8/28/2024 BARE BONES WORKWEAR 945.62               Uniforms/Safety
50933 8/28/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO/ENVIRONMENTAL DEPT. 705.00               Permits
50934 8/28/2024 PIPELINE PRODUCTS 4,014.77            Sampling Stations
50935 8/28/2024 POTABLE DIVERS, INC. 4,000.00            Inspection/Cleaning-Skyway Tank
50936 8/28/2024 REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY 265.66               Conservation Education
50937 8/28/2024 RAWLES ENGINEERING INC. 2,326.02            T-Main Shoring
50938 8/28/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 45.00                 District Site Maintenance
50939 8/28/2024 CUSTOMER 37.59                 Customer Refund
50940 8/28/2024 CUSTOMER 34.55                 Customer Refund
50941 8/29/2024 BACKFLOW DISTRIBUTORS INC. 171.69               Backflow Test Supplies
50942 8/29/2024 CUSTOMER 350.00               Toilet Rebate
50943 8/29/2024 CUSTOMER 559.59               Customer Refund
50944 8/29/2024 CUSTOMER 350.00               Toilet Rebate
50945 8/29/2024 SMUD 4,178.70            Utilities

* 50329 (VOIDED) 8/12/2024 CUSTOMER (83.97)                Stale-Dated Check
* 50377 (VOIDED) 8/12/2024 CUSTOMER (100.58)              Stale-Dated Check
* 50415 (VOIDED) 8/12/2024 STAFF (19.27)                Stale-Dated Check 

REMIT000000000004295 8/7/2024 BSK ASSOCIATES 460.00               Water Testing/Sampling
REMIT000000000004296 8/7/2024 STREAMLINE 375.00               Website Maintenance
REMIT000000000004297 8/7/2024 HUNT & SONS LLC 1,999.29            Gas and Oil
REMIT000000000004299 8/7/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 352.34               Tools
REMIT000000000004300 8/7/2024 SIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 862.11               Chemicals
REMIT000000000004301 8/7/2024 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT 1,684.80            Dues and Subscriptions
REMIT000000000004302 8/14/2024 ACWA-JPIA 17,886.82          Worker's Compensation
REMIT000000000004303 8/14/2024 BSK ASSOCIATES 249.00               Water Testing/Sampling
REMIT000000000004304 8/14/2024 GRAINGER 602.84               Uniforms
REMIT000000000004305 8/14/2024 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 6,084.86            Meter Equipment
REMIT000000000004306 8/14/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 1,081.27            Tools and Meter Parts
REMIT000000000004307 8/14/2024 ACWA-JPIA 3,746.59            Cyber Liability
REMIT000000000004311 8/21/2024 GRAINGER 757.72               Uniforms
REMIT000000000004312 8/21/2024 HUNT & SONS LLC 1,157.22            Gas and Oil

Page 2 of 4
Page 21 of 132



Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description
REMIT000000000004313 8/21/2024 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 11.85                 Registers
REMIT000000000004314 8/21/2024 SIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 718.43               Chemicals
REMIT000000000004315 8/21/2024 SUPERIOR EQUIPMENT REPAIR, INC. 5,984.94            Vehicle Maintenance 
REMIT000000000004316 8/28/2024 PITNEY BOWES BANK INC-RESERVE 15,000.00          Postage
REMIT000000000004317 8/28/2024 BSK ASSOCIATES 548.00               Water Testing/Sampling
REMIT000000000004318 8/28/2024 BURKETT'S OFFICE FURNISHINGS AND SUPPLIES 85.88                 Office Supplies
REMIT000000000004319 8/28/2024 CENTRAL VALLEY ENGINEERING & ASPHALT 5,252.00            Paving
REMIT000000000004320 8/28/2024 CRAYON SOFTWARE EXPERTS, LLC. 2,410.68            Azure Overages
REMIT000000000004321 8/28/2024 KRONICK MOSKOVITZ TIEDEMANN & GIRARD 4,674.00            Legal Fees
REMIT000000000004322 8/28/2024 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 317.80               Meter Equipment
REMIT000000000004323 8/28/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 1,786.65            Inventory Parts
REMIT000000000004324 8/28/2024 I.M.P.A.C. GOVERNMENT SERVICE 14,286.29          See Cal-Card Statements Summary for Details
REMIT000000000004325 8/28/2024 BSK ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES 3,806.00            Water Testing/Sampling
REMIT000000000004326 8/28/2024 CLARK PEST CONTROL 700.00               District Site Maintenance
REMIT000000000004327 8/28/2024 SIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 838.17               Chemicals
WDL000006605 8/14/2024 IRS EFTPS 27,664.74          Federal Payroll Taxes
WDL000006606 8/8/2024 PERS-RETIREMENT 19,311.68          Retirement Contributions
WDL000006608 8/14/2024 EDD 5,296.56            State Payroll Taxes
WDL000006611 8/23/2024 EDD 103.57               State Payroll Taxes
WDL000006612 8/23/2024 EDD 202.12               State Payroll Taxes
WDL000006613 8/23/2024 IRS EFTPS 570.80               Federal Payroll Taxes
WDL000006614 8/23/2024 IRS EFTPS 887.28               Federal Payroll Taxes
WDL000006619 8/22/2024 PERS-RETIREMENT 19,170.53          Retirement Contributions
WDL000006621 8/28/2024 EDD 5,026.66            State Payroll Taxes
WDL000006622 8/28/2024 IRS - EFTPS 26,436.65          Federal Payroll Taxes

Total General Expenses 292,348.70$      

General Warrants
50923 8/19/2024 SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT 568,983.85$      Water Purchase
REMIT000000000004308 8/19/2024 ACWA JPIA 69,242.79          Health/Dental/Vision/EAP/Life Insurance
REMIT000000000004309 8/19/2024 ACWA-JPIA 52,767.05          Property Insurance
REMIT000000000004310 8/19/2024 CENTRAL VALLEY ENGINEERING & ASPHALT 175,843.80        Paving

Total General Warrants 866,837.49$      

Service Charges and Fees
WDL000006616 8/1/2024 US BANK 172.77$             Service Charges
REMIT000000000004298 8/7/2024 INVOICE CLOUD, INC. 2,848.80            Invoice Cloud Fees

Page 3 of 4
Page 22 of 132



Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description
WDL000006615 8/14/2024 US BANK 2,364.35            Analysis Fees
WDL000006631 8/31/2024 INVOICE CLOUD, INC. 60.38                 Invoice Cloud/Payment Tech (Fees) Settled 

Total Service Charges and Fees 5,446.30$          

Total Expenses 1,164,632.49$   

Page 4 of 4
Page 23 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.3 
File Investment Report for the month of July 2024 

  

Page 24 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM III.3 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Chi Ha-Ly 
Date: September 10, 2024 
Subject: File Investment Report for the month of July 2024 

Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Discussion: 
Attached are the July 2024 LAIF monthly statement and LAIF monthly performance 
report.  The August 2024 LAIF monthly performance report is not available for inclusion 
this month due to the timing of the Board meeting.  The August 2024 LAIF monthly 
statement and LAIF monthly performance report will be included in the October 2024 
Board Consent Calendar. 
The District’s cash flow is sufficient to meet the next six months of budgeted District 
expenses (Govt. Code 53646(b)(3)).  The District’s investment portfolio is in compliance 
with the investment policy (Govt. Code 53646(b)(2)). 
  
Policy Implications: 
None. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 

Page 25 of 132



Ca I ifornia State Treasu rer
Fiona Ma, cPA

Local Agency Investment Fund
P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-000 I
(916) 6s3-3001

August 01,2024

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT

TOM R. GRAY GENERAL MANAGER
10326 FAIR OAKS BLVD
FAIR OAKS, CA 95628

Account Number:

July 2024 Statement

Tran Tr,r:e Definitions

t

Authorized Caller
SYSTEM

It'n confirmlYPe 
Number

QRD 1756663

Web
Confirm
Number

N/A

Effective Transaction
Date Date

711512024 7n2t2024

Account Summarv

Total Deposit:

Total Withdrawal:

1 l3,l5l .04

0.00

Beginning Balance :

Ending Balance:

Amount
I 13,15 1.04

10,575,829.01

10,688,990.05

Al'l

Page 26 of 132



������ ���	
��� ��������� �������� ��������� ��� ����!" �����#�$�%�&���'�%(�)�*�+, �� %(�$-%-���%.���%-�!/0�*�+, ��11�������#�$�%2���*�+, ����#�$�%3���/��%/0%2�/�*�+, ����(�$-%���0�/�0�4��/%5�/�*�+, ����%(�$-%6�����'7%5�/�0*�+, ���������1�� �11�1�%(�$-%�84���7/��/�&�%907/*�+:, ����

;���7����7�1�� <�'��!��7�����<
9��/�)�!�/�7%0)%2��07�/=>��?%@0/�7����< ;�4�%2��07�/7���1< 9044��!��#������� < 90��0��/�%>0�87����< (0��7����<

ABCDEF%GHD%IJJBKCLBMNDMC%KICD%LMOPQRDE%LMCDKDEC%DIKMDR%BM%CHD%SIPTUVW%WQJJPDNDMCIP%TDMELBM%TIXNDMC%JQKEQIMC%CBYBZDKMNDMC%SBRD%[\][̂%_Ò_à%IMR%LMCDKDEC%DIKMDR%BM%CHD%bLPRcLKD%dQMR%PBIM%JQKEQIMC%CB%TQePLO%fCLPLCX%SBRD%g[]]%_Ìh%iGHD%JDKODMCIjD%Bc%IRNLMLECKICLZD%OBEC%DkQIPE%CHD%CBCIP%IRNLMLECKICLZD%OBEC%RLZLRDR%eX%CHD%kQIKCDKPX%LMCDKDEC%DIKMLMjEh%GHD%PIl%JKBZLRDE%CHIC%IRNLMLECKICLZD%OBECE%IKD%MBC%CB%DmODDR%̂n%Bc%kQIKCDKPX%UoVApAYW%Bc%CHD%cQMRh%qBlDZDKr%Lc%CHD%agslDDt%uILPX%GKDIEQKX%vLPP%VICD%BMCHD%PIEC%RIX%Bc%CHD%cLEOIP%XDIK%LE%eDPBl%anr%CHDM%IRNLMLECKICLZD%OBECE%EHIPP%MBC%DmODDR%]n%Bc%kQIKCDKPX%UoVApAYW%Bc%CHD%cQMR%cBK%CHD%EQeEDkQDMC%cLEOIP%XDIKh%w0��!�,*�+%w/�/�%0)%9��)0����x%y))�!�%0)%/"�%;���7����*�+%w/�/�%0)%9�)�0����x%y))�!�%0)%/"�%90�/�0��

z{|�%�}~���~%{������%���~���}~%��~������z{|����|�%z~��������~%�~������%��%
������

�����%���~�%��~%���%�}������~�~�~�%%��~�%z{|������%���~�

�����~���%z~��������~�����~�%���~�%��������

9"��/%80�7%�0/%��!�8�%��x�1�x������%��%40�/'�'�7x%�"�!"%� ��/�7/0%�����<�#��!��/�'�7%4��%�0/%/0/�%���<%8��%/0%�0��8��'�

z���~�%{��~�%|�}~���~��%�������{������%z��������%¡����������%���	������¢�	��£%�������

Page 27 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.4 
Accept and File Monthly Financial Expense Report for the month of August 2024 

 

Page 28 of 132



 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.4 
REGULAR Board Meeting September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Chi Ha-Ly 
Date: September 12, 2024 
Subject: Accept and File Financial Expense Report for the month of August 2024 

Recommendation: 
None at this time.  Monthly financial expenses presented for informational purposes. 
 
Discussion: 
Attached is the financial report for the month of August 2024.   
 
Please note that the monthly financial report is on a cash basis; therefore, a budgeted line 
item could be 100% expended as of August 2024.     
 
As of August 2024, the District has 37.25% of remaining adjusted budget. 
 
This report provides a quick snapshot of the operating expenses incurred by the District 
and does not include items that are capitalized (i.e. costs of construction jobs, fixed 
assets).  The capital projects are reported separately under the “Capital Projects Status 
Report.”  
 
Policy Implications: 
None as a result of recommended action. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None as a result of recommended action. 

Page 29 of 132



August
Actual

YTD
Actual

Original Annual
Budget

Adjusted Annual
Budget

Remaining
Adjusted Budget

% Remaining
Adjusted Budget

Labor

Salaries and Wages
Salaries $229,775 $1,885,035 $3,301,100 $3,301,100 $1,416,065 42.90%

Salaries and Wages Subtotal $229,775 $1,885,035 $3,301,100 $3,301,100 $1,416,065 42.90%

Benefits and Insurance
Auto Fringe Benefits $450 $2,400 $3,600 $3,600 $1,200 33.33%
Dental Insurance 2,996 26,089 44,900 44,900 18,811 41.89%
FICA 14,298 120,044 204,700 204,700 84,656 41.36%
Medicare 3,344 28,075 47,900 47,900 19,825 41.39%
Health Insurance 64,515 563,466 829,500 829,500 266,034 32.07%
Disability Insurance 7,177 13,200 13,200 6,023 45.63%
Life Insurance 738 6,515 8,500 8,500 1,985 23.36%
Pension Plan 22,364 476,054 620,900 620,900 144,846 23.33%
Deferred Compensation** 45,650 41,400 45,650 0.00%
Unemployment Insurance 15,000 15,000 15,000 100.00%
Vision Care 728 6,329 9,400 9,400 3,071 32.67%
Worker's Compensation 28,829 83,000 83,000 54,171 65.27%

Benefits & Insurance Subtotal $109,432 $1,310,629 $1,922,000 $1,926,250 $615,621 31.96%

Salaries & Benefits Capitalized ($37,435) ($211,110) ($803,200) ($803,200) ($592,090) 73.72%
Salaries & Benefits to Damages (82,405) (11,600) (11,600) 70,805 -610.39%

Labor Total $301,771 $2,902,149 $4,408,300 $4,412,550 $1,510,401 34.23%

Materials and Services

Water Supply
Surface Water Supply, SJWD $568,984 $1,593,636 $2,217,600 $2,217,600 $623,964 28.14%
Chemicals 2,419 8,509 32,600 32,600 24,091 73.90%
Division of Drinking Water Annual Permit** 64,482 64,000 64,500 18 0.03%
Energy Cost, Wells 21,440 114,693 424,300 424,300 309,608 72.97%
Energy Cost, Other 255 1,968 3,100 3,100 1,132 36.51%
Testing & Sampling 4,925 28,375 31,000 31,000 2,625 8.47%
SCADA Support & Maintenance 1,739 10,000 10,000 8,261 82.61%
Cathodic Protection 3,658 4,000 4,000 342 8.55%
Hydrant Testing & Flushing 3,000 3,000 3,000 100.00%

Water Supply Subtotal $598,023 $1,817,060 $2,789,600 $2,790,100 $973,040 34.87%

District Facilities and Maintenance & Repairs
Wells Repairs and Upgrades $7,288 $24,000 $24,000 $16,712 69.63%
Skyway Tank Inspection 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%
Skyway Booster #1 Inspection and Repair 4,000 4,000 5,000 5,000 1,000 20.00%
Annual Pump Efficiency Testing 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%
Tank Repairs and Maintenance 2,747 15,000 15,000 12,253 81.69%
District Site Maintenance 1,932 12,671 20,000 20,000 7,329 36.65%
Janitorial 1,817 14,069 23,000 23,000 8,931 38.83%
Elevator Maintenance* 316 6,773 9,500 10,125 3,352 33.11%
Security Costs 2,971 4,200 4,200 1,229 29.27%

District Facilities Maint. Subtotal $8,065 $50,519 $110,700 $111,325 $60,806 54.62%

Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance $2,911 $10,467 $16,500 $16,500 $6,033 36.56%
Vehicle Repairs* 629 11,399 15,000 15,000 3,601 24.01%
Other Equipment Maintenance 5,286 7,487 15,500 16,500 9,013 54.62%
Other Equipment Repair 7,469 13,868 15,000 15,000 1,132 7.55%

Vehicle & Equip. Maint. Subtotal $16,295 $43,221 $62,000 $63,000 $19,779 31.40%

Insurance
Auto and General Liability Insurance $3,747 $4,247 $115,000 $115,000 $110,753 96.31%
Bonding 1,500 1,600 1,600 100 6.25%
Property Insurance** 52,767 52,767 45,000 52,800 33 0.06%

Insurance Subtotal $56,514 $58,514 $161,600 $169,400 $110,886 65.46%

Printing and Postage
Advertisements & Legal Notices $180 $5,000 $5,000 $4,820 96.40%
Online Bill Pay/Payment Processing 2,909 20,038 28,000 28,000 7,962 28.43%
Customer Bill Printing 8,742 17,500 17,500 8,758 50.05%
Customer Bill Postage 12,750 42,500 43,000 43,000 500 1.16%
Customer Collection Postage 2,100 7,000 7,000 7,000 0.00%
General Postage 150 535 1,000 1,000 465 46.50%
General Printing 886 1,800 1,800 914 50.78%
Collection Expense Printing 555 900 900 345 38.33%

Printing and Postage Subtotal $17,909 $80,436 $104,200 $104,200 $23,764 22.81%

Office Expense and Other
Office Equipment Rental $454 $700 $700 $246 35.19%
Office Supplies 256 9,835 17,000 17,000 7,165 42.15%
Office Equipment less than $500 1,255 3,000 3,000 1,745 58.15%
Office Furniture less than $500 252 2,000 2,000 1,748 87.41%
Office Equipment Maintenance 500 500 500 100.00%
Office Equipment Maintenance Agreements 2,186 10,196 18,100 18,100 7,904 43.67%

Office Expense & Other Subtotal $2,442 $21,991 $41,300 $41,300 $19,309 46.75%

Professional Services
Annual Audit Fees $20,979 $22,000 $22,000 $1,021 4.64%
Actuarial Services for Pension Calculation 800 800 800 100.00%

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Company Consolidation

For the Eight Months Ending Saturday, August 31, 2024

Page 1 of 3 Report Processed:  9/12/2024
10:28 AM

Page 30 of 132



August
Actual

YTD
Actual

Original Annual
Budget

Adjusted Annual
Budget

Remaining
Adjusted Budget

% Remaining
Adjusted Budget

Meter Testing Service* 1,040 2,807 5,000 6,800 3,993 58.72%
Dues and Subscription 1,723 27,245 52,000 52,000 24,755 47.61%
Grant Application 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%
Hydraulic Model Update 11,000 11,000 11,000 100.00%
Urban Water Management Plan 15,000 15,000 15,000 100.00%
Emergency Response Plan 500 500 500 100.00%
Legal Fees 4,674 84,127 150,000 150,000 65,873 43.92%
Coop. Trans. Pipeline O&M 7,000 7,000 7,000 100.00%
Website Design and Public Outreach 322 322 5,000 5,000 4,678 93.55%
Regional Support 102,796 108,000 108,000 5,204 4.82%
Banking Fees 2,647 19,443 36,000 36,000 16,557 45.99%
IT Consulting Service 6,570 72,222 123,500 123,500 51,278 41.52%
Annual IT Audit 5,600 5,600 5,600 100.00%
Answering Service 171 1,398 2,500 2,500 1,102 44.08%
Other Professional Fees* 9,099 150,000 169,589 160,490 94.63%

Professional Fees Subtotal $17,147 $340,439 $698,900 $720,289 $379,851 52.74%

System Maintenance/Repairs
Aggregate/Sand/Cutback** $1,374 $23,574 $25,000 $27,500 $3,926 14.27%
Paving 10,497 24,389 75,000 75,000 50,611 67.48%
Equipment and Tool Rental** 161 1,451 1,500 2,500 1,049 41.96%
General Maint., Supplies & Consumables 935 10,476 15,000 15,000 4,524 30.16%
Distribution Repairs** 739 25,691 25,000 32,500 6,809 20.95%
Distribution System Maintenance Programs 1,074 5,917 7,000 7,000 1,083 15.48%
T-Main Repairs 1,103 1,860 25,000 25,000 23,140 92.56%
Damages*** 151,957 358,313 25,000 350,000 (8,313) -2.38%
Backflow Testing and Supplies 434 3,780 4,800 4,800 1,020 21.25%
Meter Downsize Repairs/Upgrades 600 600 600 100.00%
Inventory Replenishment 10,000 10,000 10,000 100.00%
Gas & Oil 3,157 33,854 56,000 56,000 22,146 39.55%
Equipment & Tools less than $500 592 4,255 12,000 12,000 7,746 64.55%
Safety, Signs & Cones 1,398 9,501 13,000 13,000 3,499 26.92%

System Maint./Repairs Subtotal $173,422 $503,061 $294,900 $630,900 $127,839 20.26%

Fees
State and County Fees $1,300 $1,300 $1,300 100.00%
Air Quality 966 2,191 10,900 10,900 8,709 79.90%
NPDES Permit 4,000 4,000 4,000 100.00%
Haz-mat Disposal 2,000 2,000 2,000 100.00%
Haz-mat Permit 1,041 1,721 6,900 6,900 5,179 75.06%

Fees Subtotal $2,007 $3,913 $25,100 $25,100 $21,187 84.41%

Utilities
Telephone/Communication $7,567 $63,870 $101,900 $101,900 $38,030 37.32%
District Site Utilities 3,624 20,050 36,500 36,500 16,450 45.07%

Utilities Subtotal $11,191 $83,920 $138,400 $138,400 $54,480 39.36%

Information Technology
Computer Software Maint. & Agreements $4,676 $34,276 $140,500 $140,500 $106,224 75.60%
Computer Hardware <$500 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%
Computer Software <$500 125 1,000 1,000 875 87.51%

Information Technology Subtotal $4,676 $34,401 $146,500 $146,500 $112,099 76.52%

Water Effeciency
Conservation Outreach $350 $4,966 $22,000 $22,000 $17,034 77.43%
Cons. Landscape Irrigation Review 2,000 2,000 2,000 100.00%
Conservation Water Waste 39 500 500 461 92.21%
Conservation Large Landscape 322 2,000 2,000 1,678 83.89%
Conservation Toilet Rebate Program 600 2,285 10,000 10,000 7,715 77.15%
Conservation Toilet Rebate Program (Reimb.) 450 1,725 7,500 7,500 5,775 77.00%
Washing Machine Rebate Program 50 150 500 500 350 70.00%
Conservation Internal Review 1,000 1,000 1,000 100.00%

Conservation Subtotal $1,450 $9,488 $45,500 $45,500 $36,012 79.15%

Training & Uniforms
DMV/Physicals $2,871 $8,500 $8,500 $5,629 66.22%
Employee Recognition Program 587 3,729 11,000 11,000 7,271 66.10%
Training, Travel and Expenses 647 6,438 20,000 20,000 13,562 67.81%
Uniforms 1,243 4,864 12,800 12,800 7,936 62.00%

Training & Uniforms Subtotal $2,477 $17,903 $52,300 $52,300 $34,397 65.77%

Board
Election Expense $45,400 $45,400 $45,400 100.00%
Director's Fees $700 $6,000 $12,500 $12,500 $6,500 52.00%
Miscellaneous Board Expenses 72 1,230 2,500 2,500 1,270 50.81%
Travel and Seminars 25 10,000 10,000 9,975 99.75%

Board Subtotal $772 $7,255 $70,400 $70,400 $63,145 89.69%

Materials & Services Total $912,389 $3,072,119 $4,741,400 $5,108,714 $2,036,595 39.87%

GRAND TOTAL $1,214,160 $5,974,268 $9,149,700 $9,521,264 $3,546,996 37.25%

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Company Consolidation

For the Eight Months Ending Saturday, August 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3 Report Processed:  9/12/2024
10:28 AM

Page 31 of 132



August
Actual

YTD
Actual

Original Annual
Budget

Adjusted Annual
Budget

Remaining
Adjusted Budget

% Remaining
Adjusted Budget

CONTINGENCY FUND $18,800 $95,135 $200,000 $200,000 $104,865 52.43%

*The Board approved the following Project Fund to be 
carried forward from 2023 to 2024 at the January 16, 
2024 Regular Board Meeting.

$19,589.38 from Professional Services.
$1,000 from Vehicle Repairs.
$1,800 from Meter Testing Services.
$625 from Elevator Maintenance.

**Contingency Fund was used as follows:
   $500 was transferred to SWRCB-Division of Drinking 
Water Annual Permit - Board approved on January 16, 
2024.
   $4,250 was transferred to Deferred Compensation - 
Board approved on January 16, 2024.
   $29,616 was transferred to Hazel Avenue Project 
#2004 - Board approved on March 18, 2024.
   $41,969 was transferred to Gum Ranch Unit 2 
Project #1607 - Board approved on March 18, 2024.
   $7,800 was transferred to Property Insurance - Board 
approved on August 19, 2024.
   $2,500 was transferred to Aggregate/Sand/Gravel - 
Board approved on August 19, 2024.
   $1,000 was transferred to Equipment & Tool Rental - 
Board approved on August 19, 2024.
   $7,500 was transferred to Distribution Repairs - 
Board approved on August 19, 2024.

***Rerserve Fund was used as follows:
   $325,000 was transferred to Damages for the 
Transmission Main Break Repair on Pershing Ave. and 
Chestnut Ave.- Board approved on May 20, 2024.  
FOWD received $216,339.85 from the insurance 
company on 9/11/2024 for this project.
Reconciliation will be completed for this project and 
reflected in the September 2024 financials.

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Company Consolidation

For the Eight Months Ending Saturday, August 31, 2024

Page 3 of 3 Report Processed:  9/12/2024
10:28 AM

Page 32 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.5 
Approval of Warrants 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 132



Page 34 of 132



Page 35 of 132



Page 36 of 132



Page 37 of 132



Page 38 of 132



Page 39 of 132



Page 40 of 132



Page 41 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.6 
Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of August 2024 

 
  

Page 42 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM III.6 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Tom R. Gray 
Date: September 6, 2024 
Subject: Approval of Cal-Card Statement 

Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Discussion: 
Attached you will find the Cal-Card statement summary for the period ending August 22, 
2024. 
 
Policy Implications: 
None.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 

Page 43 of 132



Cal-Card Statement
Cal-Card Summary of Charges

Closing Statement Ending August 22, 2024

Date Merchant Name Amount Description Personnel
7/16/2024 Zoro Tools, Inc. 75.23$           Uniforms Staff
7/22/2024 Arco 25.00             Charged Inadvertently - FOWD has been reimbursed Staff
7/23/2024 Sam's Club 317.49           Kitchen/Janitorial/Maintenance Supplies, and Recognition Staff
7/25/2024 Bridgeport Equipment & Tool Sales & Rental 252.98           Safety Boots Staff
7/25/2024 Otis Automotive 628.53           Vehicle Repair Staff
7/25/2024 O'Reilly 19.45             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
7/25/2024 Dickies 141.38           Uniforms Staff
7/26/2024 Brake Masters 50.78             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
7/26/2024 FedEx 55.17             Banking Fees Staff
7/27/2024 Amazon 15.74             Kitchen Supplies Staff
7/28/2024 Amazon 71.78             Janitorial & Kitchen Supplies Staff
7/29/2024 Placer Equipment Rentals 169.63           Sand/Aggregate/Cutback Staff
7/31/2024 Party City 84.30             Harvest Festival Staff
8/1/2024 ULINE 230.49           Maintenance Supplies Staff
8/1/2024 O'Reilly (19.45)           Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/1/2024 O'Reilly (59.80)           Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/1/2024 O'Reilly 59.80             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/2/2024 Kiefer Landfill 45.00             District Site Maintenance Staff
8/4/2024 Chando's Food Truck 33.66             Harvest Festival Employees Meal Staff
8/5/2024 O'Reilly 80.80             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/6/2024 O'Reilly (80.80)           Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/6/2024 RDO Equipment Co. 2,000.00        Deposit for Equipment Maintenance and Repair Staff
8/7/2024 Ace Hardware 19.37             Maintenance Supplies Staff
8/7/2024 New Answernet, Inc. 171.00           Answering Service Staff
8/7/2024 Sam's Club 410.49           Kitchen/Janitorial/Maintenance Supplies, and Recognition Staff
8/8/2024 UEI Water Program 183.75           Training/Seminars Staff
8/8/2024 Rental Guys 160.70           Equipment Rentals Staff
8/9/2024 Sam's Club 37.69             Office Supplies General Manager
8/9/2024 FedEx 54.81             Banking Fees Staff

Page 1 of 3
Page 44 of 132



Date Merchant Name Amount Description Personnel
8/9/2024 Costco 89.94             Kitchen Supplies Staff
8/11/2024 Amazon 25.23             Office Supplies General Manager
8/11/2024 Amazon 33.66             Office Supplies General Manager
8/12/2024 Raley's 32.48             Employee Recognition Staff
8/13/2024 Amazon 25.53             Office Supplies Staff
8/13/2024 Amazon 45.50             Office Supplies Staff
8/14/2024 Ace Hardware 81.85             T-Main Repair Supplies Staff
8/14/2024 United Rentals 1,021.47        T-Main Repairs Staff
8/14/2024 County of Sacramento 91.00             Hazardous Waste Removal Staff
8/14/2024 County of Sacramento 244.80           Hazardous Waste Removal Staff
8/14/2024 ULINE 142.28           Distribution System Maintenance Staff
8/14/2024 Tractor Supply Co. 56.08             Uniforms Staff
8/15/2024 RDO Equipment Co. 3,965.59        Equipment Maintenance and Repair Staff
8/15/2024 VistaPrint 383.80           Distribution System Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 6.36               Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 27.87             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 29.64             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 31.26             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 36.83             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 56.83             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 O'Reilly 58.12             Vehicle Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 Home Depot 304.76           Distribution System Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 Home Depot 136.59           Distribution System Maintenance Staff
8/15/2024 ULINE 191.03           Safety Supplies Staff
8/15/2024 Macy's 215.45           Kitchen Supply Staff
8/15/2024 Amazon 96.46             Tools Staff
8/16/2024 Home Depot 41.89             Distribution System Maintenance Staff
8/17/2024 Dickies 28.27             Uniforms Staff
8/19/2024 Amazon 64.48             Distribution System Maintenance Staff
8/20/2024 Backflow Distributors, Inc. 80.30             Backflow Testing/Supplies Staff
8/20/2024 Delish Pizza 71.74             Board Meals Staff
8/20/2024 Smart and Final 23.98             Kitchen Supply Staff
8/20/2024 Smart and Final 73.68             Employee Recognition Staff

Page 2 of 3
Page 45 of 132



Date Merchant Name Amount Description Personnel
8/21/2024 Backflow Distributors, Inc. 182.23           Backflow Testing/Supplies Staff
8/21/2024 Shiela's Country Rose Florist 92.85             Employee Recognition Staff
8/21/2024 Apple 811.05           Meter Reading Equipment Staff
8/21/2024 The Mail House 32.13             Meter Warranty Staff
8/21/2024 The Mail House 90.32             Meter Warranty Staff
8/21/2024 Amazon 27.99             Office Supplies Staff
TOTAL 14,286.29$    

Page 3 of 3
Page 46 of 132



September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.7 
Accept and File Board Expense Report for the month of August 2024 

Page 47 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM III.7 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Chi Ha-Ly 
Date: September 10, 2024 
Subject: Approval of Board Expense Report for the month of August 2024 

Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Discussion: 
Attached you will find the Board Expense Report for the month of August 2024. 
 
Policy Implications: 
None as a result of recommended action. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None as a result of recommended action. 
 

Page 48 of 132



Board of Directors
Expense Reimbursement Summary

Monthly Activity - August 2024

Name Meeting Date Description Date Paid Compensation
Reimbursed 

Expenses District Expenses
Dolby

7/15/2024 Regular Board Meeting 8/8/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      
8/19/2024 Regular Board Meeting 8/22/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

200.00$             -$                   -$                      
McRae

6/25/2024 SJWD & SSWD Joint Special Board Meeting 8/8/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      
7/15/2024 Regular Board Meeting 8/8/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

200.00$             -$                   -$                      
Petersen

8/19/2024 Regular Board Meeting 8/22/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      
100.00$             -$                   -$                      

Sarkovich
7/15/2024 Regular Board Meeting 8/8/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      
8/19/2024 Regular Board Meeting 8/22/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

200.00$             -$                   -$                      

Page 1 of 2
Page 49 of 132



Board of Directors
Expense Reimbursement Summary

Monthly Activity - August 2024

August 2024 RECAP

Name Meeting Month Meetings Attended (Paid) Month Paid Compensation
Reimbursed 

Expenses District Expenses
Dolby July/August 2 August 200.00$             -$                   -$                      
Marx 0 -                    -                     -                        
McRae June/July 2 August 200.00               -                     -                        
Petersen August 1 August 100.00               -                     -                        
Sarkovich July/August 2 August 200.00               -                     -                        
TOTAL 7 700.00$             -$                   -$                      

Year-to-Date RECAP

Name Meetings Attended (Paid) Compensation
Reimbursed 

Expenses District Expenses
Dolby 11 1,100.00$          -$                   -$                      
Marx 18 1,800.00            -                     -                        
McRae 10 1,000.00            -                     -                        
Petersen 11 1,100.00            -                     -                        
Sarkovich 10 1,000.00            -                     -                        
TOTAL 60 6,000.00$          -$                   -$                      

Page 2 of 2
Page 50 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM IV.1 
Letter dated September 11, 2024 to all candidates running for the FOWD Board of 

Directors in the November 2024 General Election, California Fair Political 
Practices Commission, and others 

 

 
 
 

Page 51 of 132



Page 52 of 132



Page 53 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM V.1 
Update and discussion on the New York Water Main Project Phase I  

Page 54 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM V.1 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Tom R. Gray 
Date: September 11, 2024 
Subject: Update and discussion on the New York Water Main Project Phase I 

Recommendation: 
None – information item. 

Discussion: 

Following the notice to proceed provided on August 5th, Flowline Contractors, Inc. 
(Flowline) began preliminary construction work by potholing the project area. Based on 
field conditions, it was determined that minor modifications were needed to the original 
water main alignment and a revised design was created. The final design was then provided 
to the Sacramento County Department of Transportation (DOT) for review and approval.  

Flowline began construction of the new main on August 29th. Programmable message 
boards were placed near the Winding Way intersection 10 days prior to the start of 
construction to alert commuters about the project. To date, approximately 800 feet of main 
from north of Lemon Street to the Winding Way intersection has been installed. Installation 
of the northern portion from the Winding Way intersection to Orange Avenue will continue 
next, with final tie-ins scheduled to be made once all main is installed and tested. Due to 
an approximately two-week delay for design revisions, the final project schedule may need 
to be extended to Mid-November.  

 
Policy Implications: 
None. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Phase I of the project is included in the FOWD Board approved 2024 Budget with sufficient 
funding available.  

Page 55 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM V.3 

Update and discussion on FOWD Administration Building Parking Signs 

 

  

  

 

Page 56 of 132



Page 57 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM V.4 
Update on the “Request for Qualifications” to select a new Special District Financial 

Auditor – prior Auditor termed out in accordance with District policy 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 58 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM V.4 
REGULAR Board Meeting September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Tom R. Gray 
Date: September 11, 2024 
Subject: Update on the “Request for Qualifications” to select a new Special District 

Financial Auditor – prior Auditor termed out in accordance with District 
policy 

Recommendation: 
Information only. 

Discussion: 
At the August 19, 2024 Regular Board Meeting, the Board approved the Request for 
Qualifications to select a new Special District Financial Auditor to complete the FOWD’s 
annual audit in accordance with FOWD policy. 

On August 26, 2024, FOWD posted the Request for Qualifications  (RFQ)  on the FOWD’s 
website and provided/notified recipients on the distribution list of the RFQ availability. 

The deadline to submit a financial audit proposal to the FOWD is September 16, 2024.   

Policy Implications: 
None. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Unknown at this time. 

 

Page 59 of 132



 
 

  September 16, 2024 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.1 
Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of August 2024 

  

Page 60 of 132



 
 
AGENDA ITEM VI.1 
REGULAR Board Meeting September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Paul Siebensohn 

Date: September 10, 2024 

Subject: Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of August 2024 

Recommendation:    

None. 

Discussion: 

According to the Accuweather.com website, the recorded average daily temperature in August 2024 was 
76.0° F, which is 0.5 degrees below the historic average of 76.5° F for August.  Precipitation for August 
2024 was recorded at 0.04” according to the Department of Water Resources Chicago rain station located 
in Fair Oaks. 

The wholesale connections provided 1,232.23 AC-FT (89.99%) of surface water and FOWD groundwater 
wells produced 137.12 AC-FT (10.01%) to meet the total water demand of 1,369.35 AC-FT. 

A graph of total consumption to date versus projected budget target is found in Exhibit A. 

A graph of groundwater and surface water use in 2024 to date is found in Exhibit B. 

Both the FO-40 and CTP wholesale connections remained open to provide surface water supply to the 
District.   

According to the data provided by SJWD, the recorded volumes from wholesale connections are:  

     Forward   Reverse   
Flow, AC-FT  Flow, AC-FT Total, AC-FT   

CTP Connection    755.34                0.00       755.34 
FO-40 (39”)                476.89               0.00                    476.89 
TOTAL FROM SJWD           1,232.23               0.00                    1,232.23    
 

The average daily flow from wholesale connections for the month of August 2024 was recorded at 8,976 
GPM (12.9 million gallons per day). 

The maximum day water demand was reached on August 4, 2024, and was recorded at approximately 
15.67 million gallons (MG) with the wholesale connections providing 13.76 MG and FOWD groundwater 
wells providing 1.91 MG.  The minimum day water demand was recorded on August 24, 2024, at 12.06 
MG.  The average day demand was calculated at 14.36 MG.  

The 10-year total average water use for the month of August is 1,340.47 AC-FT and August 2013 total 
water demand was recorded at 1,631.80 AC-FT.  The August 2024 total water demand of 1,369.35 AC-
FT represents an increase of 2.15% from the August 10-year average, a 16.08% decrease from August  
2013 consumption, and a 4.11% increase from 2023 consumption.   

Page 61 of 132



 
 
During the month of August 2024, all wells performed in accordance with the approved operations plan.  

The Skyway Tank and Booster Station operated within normal parameters and in accordance with the 
seasonal operational schedule.  

The production breakdown per groundwater source for the month of August 2024 was:   

 Town Well   –                    41.12 AC-FT 
 Heather Well  –                    33.30 AC-FT   
 Northridge Well –                      2.76 AC-FT 
 Madison Well  –                    36.52 AC-FT 
             Skyway Well      –                                                23.52 AC-FT 
 TOTAL GROUNDWATER             137.12 AC-FT   
 
A graph of the production of each well to date may be found in Exhibit D. 
 
The water distribution system and water supply facilities performed within design parameters during 
August.  District staff produced water supply in accordance with FOWD Board direction for all of August 
2024. 

A graph of water consumption per month for 2013, 2023, and 2024 with average trendline is displayed 
in Exhibit C. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

Policy Implications: 

None. 

 

  

Page 62 of 132



 
 E

xhibit A
 

 

Page 63 of 132



 
 E

xhibit B
 

 

Page 64 of 132



 
 E

xhibit C
 

 

Page 65 of 132



 
 E

xhibit D
 

 

Page 66 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.2 
Discussion and possible action on the Transmission Main  

Phase I Design Request for Qualifications 
  

Page 67 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM VI.2 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Tom R. Gray 
Date: September 11, 2024 
Subject: Discussion and possible action on the Transmission Main Phase I Design 

Request for Qualifications 

Recommendation: 
Approve combining two scheduled transmission main replacement phases into one project 
for long term cost savings and to expedite retirement of the existing transmission main. 

Approve the attached Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and direct FOWD staff to distribute 
to consulting firms for response.  

Discussion: 

In 2021, Peterson Brustad Inc. (PBI) prepared a technical report for the FOWD with 
recommendations for replacing sections of an existing FOWD transmission main in phases 
over the next 8 years.  

FOWD staff has recommended modifying the scope of work for the proposed RFQ from 
what was originally planned in PBI’s technical report. This recommendation involves 
combining the phases that were planned for years 1 and 2 into a single project, now named 
Phase I. There are multiple estimated advantages to performing design and construction at 
a larger scale for Phase I. FOWD could save money on services that do not need to be 
performed twice such as mobilization, traffic control, construction support services, and 
project design. In addition, potential exists for materials and equipment to be bid at a lower 
rate due to economies of scale.  

Another significant factor in the decision to combine original two phases of the project is 
that a section of FOWD’s existing transmission main, where there have been two recent 
leaks, can be retired once construction is complete. This includes a leak at the Rollingwood 
Condominium Complex that is being actively monitored by Operations. If both phases 
were to be separated as originally planned, replacement of this “leaky” section of main 
would remain delayed.  

The requested completion date for design services in the RFQ is January 31, 2025, with 
the bid process for construction scheduled to begin thereafter. The target date for 
construction to be completed is May 31, 2025, to avoid conflicts with a County paving 
moratorium planned on Madison Avenue during the summer of 2025. 

Page 68 of 132



 

 

 

Below is a summary of the estimated costs for design from PBI’s 2021 report. A more 
accurate cost will be determined once RFQ responses are received and can be used to make 
a final decision on project phasing.  
 
Transmission Main Replacement Year 1 Design            $131,000 

Transmission Main Replacement Year 2 Design            $143,500 

Transmission Main Replacement Phase I (Combined) – Design         $274,500 
 
Policy Implications: 
None. 

Fiscal Impact: 
$145,000 is included in the 2024 Board Approved Budget for the design of the original 
Phase I Transmission Main Replacement Project. 

• This amount will need to increase if both original project phases are combined.  
• A more accurate figure can be determined once RFQ responses are received.  
• For planning purposes, $200,000 would be placed in the proposed 2025 FOWD 

Annual Budget – providing a $345,000 total budget for design of the proposed 
Phase I Transmission Main Replacement Project in 2024/25. 

 
 

Page 69 of 132



Page 70 of 132



 

1 
 

General Information 
 
Project Location: Blue Oak Drive, Madison Avenue, and Winding Oak Drive in Fair Oaks, CA 
95628. 
 
Attachments:  Exhibit “A” – Planning Map of Project Area 
 
   Exhibit “B” – FOWD Professional Services Agreement 
 
1.0 RFP Schedule 
 
September 17, 2024   Distribution of Requests for Qualifications 
 
September 23, 2024, at 3:00 PM RFQ Inquiries Due Date 
 
October 7, 2024, at 3:00 PM  Responses Must Be Received at the FOWD Office 
 
October 10, 2024   Interviews if Needed 
 
October 21, 2024   FOWD Board Approval 
 
FOWD reserves the right to adjust this schedule as necessary. 
 
2.0 Contact Person and Mailing Address 
 
Inquiries about this request for RFQ shall be submitted in writing and directed to: 
 
 Blake Chetcuti 
 Associate Engineer 
 Phone: (916) 844-3520 
 Email: bchetcuti@fowd.com 
 
Mailing Address: 
 
 Fair Oaks Water District 
 Attn: Blake Chetcuti 
 10326 Fair Oaks Boulevard 
 Fair Oaks, CA 95628 
 
3.0 Minimum Consultant Qualifications 
 
The intent of this Request for Qualifications is to select a professional consulting firm to provide 
design drawings, specifications, and construction support services to successfully design and 
install new transmission main piping.  
 
 

Page 71 of 132



 

2 
 

Minimum consulting firm qualifications are listed below:  
 
3.1 Consultant must be engaged in the business of potable water distribution and public water 
system planning and be experienced in the planning, permitting, and design of large water mains 
– having completed at least three (3) similar projects in the last five (5) years.  
 
3.2 Consultant must employ only a competent workforce for the execution of the work and all 
work must be performed under the direct supervision of one named Project Manager that is a 
Professional Engineer. 
 
3.3 Consultant must maintain in full force and effect all insurance requirements required to 
work with the Fair Oaks Water District (FOWD). 
 
3.4 Consultant must not have a conflict of interest as defined by State Law and FOWD Policy. 
Consultant agrees to make a disclosure in compliance with the law and District Policy if, at any 
time after the execution of an agreement to perform professional services, a conflict of interest 
may occur.  
 
4.0 Project Description 
 
4.1 FOWD has a network of existing transmission main piping that has been identified for 
replacement as part of a multi-year capital improvement program. This project encompasses Phase 
I of the planned transmission main replacement. Design services for the project are scheduled to 
be completed by January 31, 2025, and construction will follow thereafter.  
 
4.2 Phase I consists of Sections A and B, which each make up a portion of the total alignment. 
This structure will allow FOWD to determine whether both sections can be completed together or 
if Section B should be deferred to a future project based on the estimated design and construction 
costs.    
 
4.3 For Section A, approximately 2,180 linear feet of 24-inch ductile iron pipe will be installed 
to replace the existing 30-inch steel main. Alignment of the new main will begin on Blue Oak 
Drive at Brome Court and travel northwest to Madison Avenue. It will then continue southwest 
along Madison Avenue, terminating at Winding Oak Drive. This section includes one connection 
point to the existing transmission main at Brome Court, which is constructed of newer ductile iron 
pipe.  
 
4.4 For Section B, approximately 1,200 linear feet of 24-inch ductile iron pipe will be installed 
to replace the existing 30-inch steel main. Alignment of the new main will begin on Blue Oak 
Drive at Madison Avenue and travel southwest along Blue Oak Drive, terminating past Great 
Dome Court. This section includes one connection point to the existing transmission main past 
Great Dome Court, which is constructed of newer ductile iron pipe.       
 
4.5 All available data including as-builts, map records, and reports will be provided to the 
selected consultant.  
 

Page 72 of 132



 

3 
 

5.0 District’s Objectives and Expectations 
 
5.1 The District’s main objectives are to: 
 

• Meet the January 31, 2025 deadline for all design services completed. 
 

• Increase water supply reliability for FOWD customers by strategically replacing aging 
infrastructure. 

 
• Meet all applicable Division of Drinking Water regulations and County and local 

jurisdiction requirements. 
 

• Comply with FOWD Policies and Procedures.  
 

• Establish a strong working relationship with the selected consultant and maintain 
effective communication throughout the project.  

 
6.0 Scope of Work 
 
The following minimum scope of work was developed for the project and all responses must 
include listed deliverables for each listed task.  
 
As a response addendum, it is requested that all responses include additional tasks that the 
consultant deems important for the successful completion of the project if not listed.  
 
6.1 Task 1 – Preliminary Work and Survey 
 

• Develop a full and complete understanding of the project requirements.  
 

• Determine feasibility of the proposed alignment and connection points. If any 
modifications are required, prepare a preliminary design memorandum for FOWD 
review.   

 
• Obtain mapping and as-built records for all existing utilities in the vicinity of the 

project. 
 

• Complete a field topographic survey for the preparation of final design plans. Survey 
should include all utility markers located at or above grade (e.g. valve lids, manhole 
covers, storm drain inlets, poles, power terminals, etc.).   

 
6.2 Task 2 – Design and Specifications  
 

• Develop a complete set of design drawings for construction. Tasks include but are not 
limited to: 

 
o Review facility maps and as-built records provided by FOWD. 

Page 73 of 132



 

4 
 

o Coordinate with utility representatives and local agencies as needed. 
 

o Design drawings should be in conformance with FOWD Standards and 
Specifications. The following minimum requirements must also be met:  

 
 Cover sheet with project number, installation/retirement chart, area map, 

FOWD Board of Directors, and FOWD signature line. 
 

 FOWD General Notes. 
 

 Plan and profile drawings with stationing.  
 

 FOWD Standard Details. 
 

 Erosion Control Plan per Sacramento County Standards. 
 

 Paving restoration details per Sacramento County Standards. 
 

o Provide weekly progress updates to the FOWD Project Manager. 
 
o Schedule design review meetings with the FOWD Project Team. 

 
 50% Design Review: prepare for, conduct, and document a 50% design 

review meeting that will take place in-person at the District office.  
 

 95% Design Review: prepare for, conduct, and document a 95% design 
review meeting that will take place in-person at the District office. 

 
o Prepare final design drawings for FOWD approval. 

 
o Provide the District with two (2) printed sets of full-size plans and electronic copies 

in PDF and CAD formats.  
 

• Develop a complete set of specifications for construction that conform with FOWD’s 
current Standards and Specifications.  
 

• Prepare an Engineer’s Estimate of probable construction cost based on the final 
approved plans.   

 
• Assist the District with obtaining the required permits and permissions.  

 
6.3 Task 3 – Construction Support Services 
 

• Prepare a complete bid package for posting and distribution.  
 

Page 74 of 132



 

5 
 

• Assist the District with Bid Addendums and help address questions from contractors 
during the bidding process.   

 
• Assist the District with Requests for Information (RFIs) before and during construction.  

 
• Review contractor submittals for conformance to the final design drawings and 

specifications.  
 

• Allocate resources to attend up to four (4) progress meetings, including the pre-
construction meeting.  

 
• Assist in resolving conflicts caused by discrepancies in contract documents. 

 
• Issue field memorandums and clarifications as required.   

 
7.0 How to Submit Responses 
 
Responses shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, clearly marked on the outside with the Project 
Name Transmission Main Replacement Phase I – Design. Respondents must submit one (1) 
unbound and two (2) bound copies of the response with all the information requested in this 
document. Respondents must submit all information related to fees in a separate sealed envelope 
included in the package. Responses should be prepared simply and economically, by providing a 
straightforward, concise description of the proposer’s capabilities related to specified services. 
Responses should not include any information not specifically identified or specified as a required 
response. FOWD requests that responses be limited to 20 pages (not counting resumes and 
example plan sets) submitted in the format outlined below.   
 

• Cover letter indicating RFQ title, name of firm, local firm address, local firm phone 
number, and contact person with an email address – 1 page. 
 

• Table of Contents – 1 page. 
 

• Brief description of the firm and qualifications for completing the project – 2 pages. 
 

• Based on the scope of services outlined in the RFQ, an overview of project 
understanding and a high-level plan for completing the project. This section must also 
include a proposed schedule for completing the project including milestones for 
completion of each of the three listed project tasks. If different, please provide an 
alternate approach for meeting the January 31, 2025 deadline for design services to be 
completed – 3 pages. 

 
• Information on the firm’s Project Team for the term of the contract – 4 pages. 

 
o Organizational structure of the firm.  

 

Page 75 of 132



 

6 
 

o Name of the point of contact in the firm that will be responsible for all project issues 
– Project Manager. This is the person that will have direct continued responsibility 
for the services provided to the FOWD. This person will be FOWD’s first point of 
contact and will handle day-to-day activities through to the project’s completion.  
 

o List of key project personnel and project role. 
 

o Experience and resumes of key project personnel. 
 

o Identification of subconsultants, if applicable. 
 

o Other pertinent information. 
 

• Provide public agency project references including client contact information, 
providing improvement plans (half-size) for one (1) of the referenced projects – 3 
pages. 
 

• In a separate sealed envelope, provide project fee proposals for Sections A, B, and 
Combined as outlined in the Project Description. A low-level construction cost 
estimate for each of the three scenarios is also requested.  

 
o Responses are to be broken down by the three tasks listed in the RFQ. Include fee 

estimates for all sub-consultants and vendors with supporting information. This 
initial fee estimate will be used to finalize the Professional Services Agreement 
developed between the selected consultant and FOWD. Please also include the 
following in the project fee response: 
 
 Hourly rate schedule for each person that will be assigned to the project or 

bill to the project, including all sub-consultants. 
 

 Provide mark-up by percentage for reimbursable expenses and sub-
consultants.  

 
 Provide a list of typical reimbursable expenses. 

 
 Please note that the project fee response does not have a suggested page 

limit and that pages included in the project fee response do not count in the 
suggested page total page limit of 20 pages.  

 
8.0 Response Information  
 
All responses must be received no later than the proposal due date. Late responses will not be 
considered. 
      

• Cost of preparation of responses will be borne by the respondent. 
 

Page 76 of 132



 

7 
 

• In submittal of a response, respondent provides the FOWD with the right to contact all 
references listed in the response and to investigate all information listed in the response. 
 

• This request does not constitute an offer of employment or to contract for services. 
 

• The FOWD reserves the right to reject any or all responses, wholly or in part, received 
by reason of this request. 

 
• All responses submitted shall become FOWD property. 

 
• All responses shall remain firm for sixty (60) days following the closing date for receipt 

of responses. 
 

• The FOWD reserves the right to award the contract to the firm who represents the 
response which in the judgement of the FOWD best accomplished the desired results 
and shall include but not be limited to a consideration of the professional service fee. 

 
• Selection will be made based on the responses submitted. 

 
9.0 Selection Criteria 
 
FOWD is seeking an engineering firm that offers qualifications and competence that best meets 
the needs of the District. FOWD will utilize selection guidelines based on the following factors: 
 

• Qualifications and experience of project team, particularly in the region. 
 

• Project approach. 
 

• Ability to meet schedule. 
 

• Project references. 
 

• Quality of proposal response and adherence to required format. 
 

• Overall cost. 
 
A review panel will conduct evaluations based on the listed criteria and make a selection or may 
select respondents to interview. If interviews are conducted, the respondents selected will be 
required to physically attend interviews conducted at the FOWD office. FOWD will not interview 
more than the top two ranking proposals if required.   
 
After a firm is selected, the District will negotiate with the firm to determine a final scope of work 
and fee for the final Professional Services Agreement. 

Page 77 of 132



BLD 31

BLD 32

BLD 33

BLD 30

BLD
23

BLD 24

BLD 23

BLD 22

BL
D

 2
5

BLD 19

BLD 18BLD 16

BLD 17

BLD 15

BLD 12

BLD 14

BLD 13

BLD 11

BLD 10

BLD 9

BLD 8
BLD 7

BLD 6

BLD 2

BLD 1

BLD 3

BLD 4

BLD 5
30" BFV

IRR SVC

6" AC
BLOWOFF

IRR

IRR

LAUNDRY

PRIVATE

BLD 21

BLD 20

IRR

IRR

IRR

IRR

IRR

IRR TENNIS COURTS

IRR

IRR

Zone Valve
Keep Closed

PZ PZ
PZ

PZ
PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ
PZ PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ PZ PZ

PZ

PZ PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

30

18

19

20

12
13

10 11

9

14

6

5

7

8

78
21

48

75

97
73

96

93

92 74

23

77

24

25

27
29

28
30

82

83

1

72

94

95

392

71

40

41

47

46

49

44

42

43

45

50

67

52 53

54

55

57

56

61

58

62

64

65

63

60

59

BRANDING IRON LN (PVT)

CH
AM

IS
E 

CT

MO
NT

IA
 C

T
KINGSBURY CT

BLUERIDGE CT

CHAUNCEY   W
Y

BELL
INGHAM  W

Y

SUTTON WY

CAMAS CT
BR

OME C
T

NORWAY DR

56255617 5607

5601

14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 41516171819
20

50

9161

9181

9201

5342

5348

5361

5355

9185

9173
9172

9131

5612

5606

5600

9215
9211

9213
9209

922
3

921
9922

1
921

7

9010

5543

55485545

5541 5544

5540

5500

5509

5501

5517

5524

5520

5516

5512

5508

5504
5500

5523

5519

5515

5509

5505

5501

9247924392
31

9225
9219

9216

9212

9208

9204

9200

5548

5544
5540

5536

5549

5545

5541

9205

9201

5550 5523

5519

5515

5505

5546

5542

5535
5547

5603

5601

5604

5600 5524
5520

5516
5600

9111
9115

9022

9125
9119

9113
91079101

90
51

5539

9125
9119

9113

9107

5525

5519

5513

9132

9126
9120

9110

5550

5540

5530

5520

5500

5538

5532 5542 5536

5530

5524

5518

5512

5506

5500

5432

5426

5420

5414

5408

5518

5512

5506
5482

5561
5555 5549 5537

5525

5513

5501

5423 5419
5415

5439

5435
5431

5427

5428

5426

5424

5420

5416 5412

5431
5427

5423
5417

5409

5435

5430

5432

5605

5609

5458

5452

5470
5464

5613

5609

5605

5601

5565

5561

5551

5541

5531

5521

5511

5501

5483

5473

54
39

90459039

5443

5452

235-0420-051

235-0610-001

235-0420-052

235-0420-053

235-0420-049

235-0420-047235-0420-046

235-0420-045

235-0420-044

235-0420-043

235-0420-042

235-0420-041

235-0420-040

235-0420-039

235-0420-038
235-0420-037

235-0420-036

235-0420-035

235-0420-034

235-0420-033

235-0420-032

235-0420-031

235-0420-030

235-0420-029

235-0420-028

235-0420-027

235-0420-026

235-0420-024

235-0420-023

235-0420-022

235-0420-021

235-0420-020

235-0420-019

235-0420-018

235-0420-017

235-0420-016

235-0420-015

23
5-

04
20

-0
14

235-0420-013

235-0420-012
235-0420-011

235-0420-010

235-0420-009

235-0420-008 235-0420-007

235-0344-009

235-0344-008

235-0344-006

235-0344-005

235-0344-004
235-0344-003

235-0344-002

235-0344-001

235-0342-006

235-0342-005

235-0342-004 235-0342-003

235-0342-002

235-0342-001

235-0343-005

235-0343-004

235-0343-003

235-0343-002

235-0343-001

235-0341-008

235-0083-033

235-0083-032

235-0083-030

235-0084-030

235-0550-056

235-0550-055

235-0550-054235-0550-048

235-0550-047

235-0550-046

235-0600-005
235-0600-002

235-0600-001

23
5-

03
52

-0
07

235-0352-006
235-0352-005

235-0352-004

235-0352-003
235-0352-002

235-0352-001

235-0293-010
235-0302-007

235-0302-004

235-0302-003

235-0302-002

235-0302-001

235-0301-015

235-0301-014

235-0301-013

235-0301-012

235-0301-011

235-0301-010

235-0301-009

235-0301-008

235-0301-007

235-0301-006

235-0301-005

235-0301-004

235-0301-003
235-0301-002

235-0301-001

235-0303-030

235-0303-029

235-0303-028

235-0303-027

235-0303-024

235-0303-023
235-0303-022

235-0303-021

235-0303-020

235-0303-019

235-0303-018

235-0303-015

235-0303-014
235-0303-013235-0303-012

235-0303-011

235-0303-010

235-0303-009

235-0303-008

235-0303-006

235-0303-004

235-0303-003

235-0303-002
235-0303-001

235-0304-022

235-0304-021

235-0304-020

235-0304-019

235-0304-018

235-0304-012

235-0304-011

235-0304-010

235-0304-004

235-0304-003

235-0304-002

235-0304-001

235-0305-005

235-0305-004

235-0305-003

235-0305-002

235-0305-001

235-0292-015

235-0292-014

235-0287-001

235-0286-006

235-0286-005

235-0286-004

235-0286-003

235-0286-002

235-0292-016

235-0284-010

235-0284-009

235-0284-008

235-0284-007

235-0284-006

235-0284-005

235-0291-008

235-0291-007

235-0291-006

235-0291-005

235-0291-004

235-0291-003

235-0291-002

235-0291-001

235-0292-013

235-0292-007

235-0292-006

235-0292-005

235-0292-003

235-0292-002

235-0293-003

23
5-

02
93

-0
02

235-0352-009 235-0352-008

MADISON AV

SKYRIDGE DR

BEAUREGARD    WY

NO
RW

AY
 D

R

BLUE OAK DR

BLUE OAK DR

LONG

90
51

23
5-

03
52

-0
07

54
32

23
5-

02
92

-0
16

5470235-0292-015

54
30

23
5-

02
92

-0
13 235-0510-001

PARK

VACANT

9160

5511

5401-5403

5476

9127

9100

235
-00

84-
034

CL 1
50

19
79

19
33

/19
60

30
" C

ML 1
93

3/1
96

0

8" AC  1963

8"
 A

C
 1

96
1

30" CML STEEL 1993 108'

10
"  

AC C
L 1

50
  1

97
9

8" AC 1979

8" AC  1979

8" AC

3"  PVC  (PVT)

6" AC 1979

8" AC  1979

8" 
AC  1

97
9

30"  S
TL/CML

10" AC

1979

8" AC  1979

10" AC 
1979 

10
" A

C C
L1

50

10" A
C CL150

10
" A

C C
L1

50
19

79

10
" A

C

10" AC

6" AC CL 150 1964

8"
 A

C

8" AC

6"
 A

C 
 1

97
5

8"  AC CL 150

 1982 8"  C
-900

8"  C-900  1986

6"
 A

C
19

75
 

6"
 A

C
 1

97
5

6" 
AC 19

756" AC

 1975

8"  C-900
 1985

10" C-900 1985

10" A
C

12" AC

 1963

6" AC

 1963

12
"  A

C  1
96

3

12" AC

6" AC
 1963

8" AC  1963

6" AC   1963

6" AC

12
" A

C
 1

96
3

8"
 A

C 
 1

96
3

6" AC
1975

12"AC

1933/1960

ROLLING TREE

UPPER PRESSURE ZONE

MID-ZONE

8" 
AC

NO
RW

AY
    

DR

6" AC

10
" A

C

DR

SKYRIDGE

8" AC

CHAU NCEY WY

MADISON AV

UPPER PRESSURE ZONE

MID-ZONE

ROLLINGWOOD
COMMONS

CONDOMINIUMS

10
" A

C C
L 1

50

CANYON  DR

MADISON AV

CATHOTIC
PROTECTION

STATION
(CPS)

10"AC

10"AC STUB
10" AC

CP

CP

CP

CATHOTIC
PROTECTION

STATION
(CPS)

RECTIFIER &
DEEP WELL

ANODE
(CPS)

EXPOSED
PIPE

SEW
ER

LIF
T S

TATIO
N

12" AC

GV

PO
O

L

Club House

19
79

1.5"

1.5"

10
" A

C 

10" AC 

30
" S

TL

10" A
C

24"DIP
10" AC10" AC
2014

24"
BFV

CP

CATHOTIC
PROTECTION
STATION

MEDIAN
FRONTAGE RD

8"
 A

C
  1

97
9

8'' C900
FLX CPL

3" Comp

1.5'' DOM & IRR

Unit 209-244

Unit 185-208
Office & POOL

3" Comp (NPTN)

2'' DOM & IRR-NPTN

2'' DOM & IRR- NPTN
Unit 245-254 Acc#1067

3'' DOM & IRR-NPTN

Unit 83-128

Acc# 1067

12
1-1

28

120-113

112-107

106 -  99

83 -  90

91
-98

51
-58

59 - 66

75 - 82

67
-74Acc # 1068

lund

12
9-1

36

137-144

14
5-1

52

153 -160

161 - 168

177 - 184

169 -176

185 -192

193 - 200

201 - 208

209 - 216

21
7-2

26

22
7-2

36

237 - 244

24
5-2

54

Acc # 1067

3" NPTN
Unit 129-184
Acc # 1067

3" Comp (NPTN)
Unit 51-82+lund
Acc # 1068

D21NB2106

H31

H34

H2

H4

H5

H6

H7

H8

H9

H10

H11

H12

H13

H14

H15

H16

H17

H18

H19

H21

H25

H28

H29

H32

H38

H39

H40

H41

H42H43

H44

H45

H46

H47

H48

H49

H50

H51

H52

H53

H54

H55

H56 H57

H58

H62

102

104

103

105

106

107

108

L20FF2016

30"  1
0 GA CML

abandoned 2014

1.5'' DOM
4'' FIRE

FOWD LIMIT

57

110

D6
B6

D7
B7

D59
B59

D46
B46

D45
B45

D37
B37

D40
B40

D41
B41

D39
B39

D58

D12

B44
A44

A49

A28

A38

FAIR OAKS
WATER DISTRICT

TRANSMISSION MAIN REPLACEMENT PHASE I - DESIGN
SECTION A

NOT TO SCALE

EXHIBIT A

Page 78 of 132

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



BLD 9

BLD 8
BLD 7

BLD 6

BLD 2

BLD 1

IRR SVC

IRR

Zone Valve
Keep Closed

PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ PZ
PZ

PZ
PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ PZ PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ PZ PZ PZ

PZ

PZ

PZ

20

21

1

72

94

95

392
62

64

65

50

52
53

49

51

48

38

40

39

41

42
64

43

46

14

16

19

18

17

VISTA DOME CT

GREAT DOME CT

SMOKE

MARKWOOD LN 

LA
RI

AT
 C

T

OA
K 

ST
ON

E

SADDLE LN

HIGH     FLIGHT CT

VO
UG

HT
 D

R

NAVIGATION CT

TAKEOFF CT

FLYWAY DR

9185

9173
9172

9184

91785406

5412
5407

5415

5407

5401
9011

5412

5306

53005301

5307

5362
5342 9190

9196

5319

5313

5307

5300
5306

5312

5207

9137

9131

9130

5305

9131

9010

5391

9027

9021
9114

9110

9111
9115

9028

9022

9125
9119

9113
91079101

90
51

54315435

5426

54
39

9045903990339027
9021

9015

5321
5325

54435447
5451

9192

9186

9180
9174

53139162
9156

9150

9187

9175
9163

91579151

5330

5324

5318

5300

5249

5313

5307

5301

5361

5355
5349 5343

9085

9079

5209

5204
5200

5201

5224
5220

5216

5212

5208

5217

5223

9061

9073

9067

9051

9045

9039

9033

9040

9046

9050

9060

9079

9074

9084

9078

9078

9067906390599055

9050 9054
9058

5250

5256

5300

5304

5310 5316 5320

5328

5329

9057

9029

9033

9037

9041

5309

5313 5317

5245

5251

5255

9026

9032

5301

5300
5304

5316

9025

9074

9070

90759071

235-0550-048

235-0550-047

235-0550-046

235-0550-045
235-0550-037

235-0550-036
235-0550-035

235-0470-002

235-0470-001

235-0600-007

235-0600-006

235-0600-005
235-0600-004

235-0600-003

235-0600-002

235-0600-001

23
5-

03
52

-0
07

235-0352-006
235-0352-005

235-0352-004

235-0352-003
235-0352-002

235-0352-001

235-0293-010
235-0302-007

235-0660-078

235-0660-063
235-0660-062

235-0660-061235-0660-060

235-0660-054
235-0660-053

235-0293-005

235-0293-004 235-0293-003

23
5-

02
93

-0
02

235-0352-015

235-0352-014
235-0352-013

235-0352-012
235-0352-011 235-0352-010 235-0352-009 235-0352-008

235-0354-003

235-0354-002

235-0354-001

235-0580-005

235-0600-020

235-0600-008

235-0600-009

235-0600-011

235-0600-012

235-0600-025
235-0600-024

235-0660-064

235-0570-030

235-0570-031

235-0570-036

235-0470-003

235-0470-004

235-0470-005

235-0470-006

235-0470-007

235-0470-008

235-0470-009

235-0470-010

235-0470-011

235-0470-012

235-0470-013

235-0470-014

235-0470-015

235-0470-016

235-0470-017

235-0470-018

235-0470-019

235-0470-020

235-0470-021

235-0470-022

235-0470-023

235-0470-030

235-0550-003

235-0550-004

235-0550-005
235-0550-006

235-0550-007

235-0550-008

235-0550-009

235-0550-010

235-0550-011

235-0550-012

235-0550-013

235-0550-014

235-0550-015

235-0550-016

235-0550-017

235-0550-018235-0550-019

235-0550-020

235-0550-021235-0550-022

235-0550-023

235-0550-024

235-0550-025
235-0550-026

235-0550-027

235-0550-028

235-0550-029

235-0550-030235-0550-031

235-0550-032

235-0550-033

235-0550-034

235-0550-038 235-0550-039

235-0550-040

235-0550-041

235-0550-042

235-0550-043

235-0550-044

235-0550-064

235-0550-065

235-0550-075

235-0550-076

235-0550-077

235-0180-063
235-0180-064

235-0180-062235-0180-061

235-0600-013

235-0660-079

235-0660-001

235-0660-002

235-0660-003

235-0660-004

235-0660-005

235-0660-006

235-0660-007

235-0660-008

235-0660-009

235-0660-029

235-0660-055

235-0660-056

235-0660-057

235-0660-058
235-0660-059

235-0660-066235-0660-067
235-0660-068

235-0660-069

235-0660-070

235-0660-071

235-0660-072 235-0660-073

235-0660-074

235-0660-075235-0660-076

235-0600-014

235-0600-015

235-0600-016

235-0600-017

235-0600-018

235-0600-019

MADISON AV

BEAUREGARD    WY

WIN
DI

NG
 O

AK
 D

R

LONG 

LONG

90
78

9078

5328
235-0660-079

5329
235-0660-064

5309
235-0660-059

5305
235-0660-058

9033
235-0660-055

9029
235-0660-054

91845362

PARK

235-0470-030
PARK

9027

9060

9114

5325
235-0660-063

PUBLIC

90
51

23
5-

03
52

-0
07

5401-5403

9127

10"  AC

30
"  

DI 1
98

9

10
"

8"
 A

C
 1

97
6

6" AC

8" 
AC

19
76

6" AC

8" AC

8"
 A

C

6" AC

6"
 A

C

10" AC 1978

30
"  

DI
 19

89

6" AC
 1981

12
"  A

C

 19
89

6" AC

8" AC

30
" C

ML 1
93

3/1
96

0

6"  AC CL 150  1964

8" AC 1979

10
" A

C

10" AC

6" AC CL 150 1964

6" AC 1981

12" AC

 1989

8" AC

8"
 A

C

6" AC

6" AC

12" AC

12" AC

GREAT DOME CT
6" AC 1981

WINDING OAK DR

C
-9

00

CL 150

12"AC

LN
 (P

VT
)

CANYON

DR

(PVT)

(PVT)

ROLLING TREE

LN  (PVT)

VISTADOMECT

CL 150

12
"  

AC

BIPLANE WY

8" AC

CL 150

WOOD CT

8"
 A

C

8" A
C

8" AC

BRANDING

ROLLING TREE

LN  (PVT)

8" AC

UPPER PRESSURE ZONE

MID-ZONE

8" AC

MADISON AV

NO
RW

AY
 D

R

CANYON  DR

CATHOTIC
PROTECTION

STATION
(CPS)

CP

CP

CP

CATHOTIC
PROTECTION
STATION
(CPS)

RECTIFIER &
DEEP WELL

ANODE
(CPS)

EXPOSED
PIPE

CATHOTIC
PROTECTION

STATION
(CPS)

Zone Valve
Keep Closed

24"
FLANGED
ACCESS

12" AC

VALVE REPLACED
2020

10" A
C

1" DFS

CURB MEDIAN

MEDIAN
FRONTAGE RD

FRONTAGE RD

H39

H40

H43

H44

H45

H11

H12

H13

H14

H15

H16

H17

H18

H30
H31

H1

H2

H3

H4

H5

H56 H57

H58
105

106

L23FF2309

63

D46
B46

D39

D43

A46

D13
B13

D16
B16

D1
B1

D3
B3

D58

FAIR OAKS
WATER DISTRICT

NOT TO SCALE

TRANSMISSION MAIN REPLACEMENT PHASE I - DESIGN
SECTION B

EXHIBIT A

Page 79 of 132

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



                                                                           Page 1 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT B 
Fair Oaks Water District 

Standard Terms and Conditions 
 

 
CONSULTANT agrees with DISTRICT that: 
 
a. When the law establishes a professional standard of care for the CONSULTANT’S services, 

to the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT will immediately defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless DISTRICT, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers 
from all claims and demands of all persons that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the 
CONSULTANT’S negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct in the performance (or 
actual or alleged non-performance) of the work under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall 
defend itself against any and all liabilities, claims, losses, damages, and costs arising out of or 
alleged to arise out of CONSULTANT’S performance or non-performance of the work 
hereunder and shall not tender such claims to DISTRICT nor to its directors, officers, 
employees, or authorized volunteers, for defense or indemnity. 

 
b. Other than in the performance of services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 

CONSULTANT  will immediately defend, indemnify and hold harmless DISTRICT, its 
directors, officers, employees and authorized volunteers from all claims and demands of all 
persons arising out the performance of the work or furnishing of materials; including but not 
limited to, claims by the CONSULTANT  or CONSULTANT’S employees for damages to 
persons or property except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct or active negligence of 
DISTRICT, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 

 
c. By their signature hereunder, CONSULTANT certifies that they are aware of the provisions 

of the California Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for 
workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that 
code, and that CONSULTANT will comply with such provisions before commencing the 
performance of the services under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT and SUB-
CONSULTANTS will keep workers’ compensation insurance for their employees in effect 
during all work covered by this Agreement. 

 
d. Professional Liability – CONSULTANT will file with DISTRICT, before beginning 

professional services, a certificate of insurance satisfactory to Fair Oaks Water District 
evidencing professional liability coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 
annual aggregate, that coverage shall not be cancelled except with notice to DISTRICT.  
Coverage is to be placed with a carrier with an AM best rating of no less than A-: VII, or 
equivalent, or as otherwise approved by DISTRICT. The retroactive date (if any) is to be 
no later than the effective date of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall maintain such 
coverage continuously for a period of at least five (5) years after the completion of the 
contract work. CONSULTANT shall purchase a five-year extended reporting period; i) if 
the retroactive date is advanced past the effective date of this Agreement; ii) if the policy 
is canceled or not renewed; or iii) if the policy is replaced by another claims-made policy 
with a retroactive date subsequent to the effective date of this Agreement. In the event that 
the CONSULTANT employs other consultants (SUB-CONSULTANTS) as part of the 

Page 80 of 132



                                                                           Page 2 of 5 

 

work covered by this Agreement, it shall be the CONSULTANT's responsibility to require 
and confirm that each sub-consultant meets the minimum insurance requirements specified 
above. 
 

e. Minimum Insurance Requirements – CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the 
duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries or death to persons or damages to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
and the results of that work by the CONSULTANT, his agents, representatives, employees or 
SUB-CONSULTANTS. 

 
f. CONSULTANT will file with DISTRICT, before beginning services, certificates of insurance 

(Acord Form 25 or equivalent) satisfactory to DISTRICT evidencing: 
 

a) Coverage – Coverage for commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance 
shall be at least as broad as the following: 
i) Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial General Liability Coverage (Occurrence 

Form CG 00 01) 
 

ii) Insurance Services Office (ISO) Business Auto Coverage (Form CA 00 01), covering 
Symbol 1 (any auto) 

 
b) Limit – The CONSULTANT shall maintain limits no less than the following: 

i) General liability - coverage of not less than two million ($2,000,000) per occurrence or 
the full per occurrence limits of the policies available, whichever is greater for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage; ($4,000,000 general and products-
completed operations aggregate (if used)). 

 
ii) Auto liability - One million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage 

each accident limit;  
 
iii) Workers’ compensation (statutory limits) and employer’s liability ($1,000,000) (if 

applicable); Waiver of Subrogation: The insurer(s) named above agree to waive all 
rights of subrogation against the Fair Oaks Water District, its elected or appointed 
officers, officials, agents, authorized volunteers and employees for losses paid under the 
terms of this policy which arise from work performed by the Named Insured for the Fair 
Oaks Water District; but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Fair 
Oaks Water District has received a waiver of subrogation from the insurer. 

 
c) Required Provisions  

i) The general liability coverage shall give Fair Oaks Water District, its directors, officers, 
employees (collectively the District), and authorized volunteers insured status (via ISO 
endorsement at least as broad as CG 20 10 10 01) specifically naming the Fair Oaks Water 
District, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers; or using the language 
that states "as required by written contract."   

 
ii) The general liability coverage is to state or be endorsed (with as broad as ISO 

endorsement CG 20 01 04 13) to state “such insurance shall be primary and any 

Page 81 of 132



                                                                           Page 3 of 5 

 

insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by DISTRICT, its directors, 
officers, employees, or authorized volunteers shall not contribute to it.”  

 
iii) Coverage is to be placed with a carrier with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A- :VII, 

or equivalent, or as otherwise approved by DISTRICT.  
 
iv) The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to 

DISTRICT, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 
 
v) In the event that the CONSULTANT employs other CONSULTANT (SUB- 

CONSULTANT) as part of the work covered by this Agreement, it shall be the 
CONSULTANT’S responsibility to require and confirm that each SUB- 
CONSULTANT meets the minimum insurance requirements specified above. 

 
g. If the CONSULTANT maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums 

shown above, the DISTRICT requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher 
limits maintained by the CONSULTANT. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the 
specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the DISTRICT. 

 
h. If any of the required coverages expire during the term of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT 

shall deliver the renewal certificate(s) including the general liability additional insured 
endorsement to DISTRICT at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

 
i. CONSULTANT shall not accept direction or orders from any person other than the General 

Manager or the person(s) whose name(s) is (are) inserted on Page 2 as “other authorized 
representative(s).” 

 
j. Payment, unless otherwise specified on Page 1, is to be in accordance with DISTRICT policy 

after acceptance by DISTRICT. 
 
k. Permits required by government authorities will be obtained at CONSULTANT’S expense, and 

CONSULTANT will comply with local, state, and federal regulations and statutes including, 
but not limited to Cal/OSHA requirements. 

 
l. The CONSULTANT shall execute and maintain the CONSULTANT’S work to avoid injury or 

damage to any person or property. The CONSULTANT shall comply with the requirements 
and specification relating to safety measures applicable in particular operations or kinds of 
work. 

 
m. Any change in the scope of the services to be done, method of performance, nature of materials 

or price thereof, or to any other matter materially affecting the performance or nature of the 
services will not be paid for or accepted unless such change, addition or deletion is approved in 
advance, in writing by a supplemental agreement executed by DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT’S 
“authorized representative(s)” has (have) the authority to execute such written change for 
CONSULTANT. 

 
n. Ownership of Documents – All works of authorship and every report, study, spreadsheet, 

Page 82 of 132



                                                                           Page 4 of 5 

 

worksheet, plan, design, blueprint, specification, drawing, map, photograph, computer model, 
computer disk, magnetic tape, CAD data file, computer software and any other document or  
deliverables prepared, developed or created by CONSULTANT under this Agreement and 
provided to DISTRICT (“Work Product”) shall be the property of DISTRICT , and DISTRICT 
shall have the rights to use, modify, reuse, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast and distribute 
the Work Product and to prepare derivative and additional documents or works based on the 
Work Product without further compensation to CONSULTANT or any other party. 
CONSULTANT may retain a copy of any Work Product and use, reproduce, publish, display, 
broadcast and distribute any Work Product and prepare derivative and additional documents or 
works based on any Work Product; provided, however, that CONSULTANT shall not provide 
any Work Product to any third party without DISTRICT’S prior written approval, unless 
compelled to do so by legal process. If any Work Product is copyrightable, CONSULTANT 
may copyright the same, except that, as to any Work Product that is copyrightable by 
CONSULTANT, DISTRICT reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable license to 
use, reuse, reproduce, publish, display, broadcast and distribute the Work Product and to prepare 
derivative and additional documents or works based on the Work Product. If DISTRICT reuses 
or modifies any Work Product for a use or purpose other than that intended by the scope of 
work under this Agreement, then DISTRICT shall hold CONSULTANT harmless against all 
claims, damages, losses and expenses arising from such reuse or modification. For any Work 
Product provided to DISTRICT in a paper format, upon request by DISTRICT at any time 
(including, but not limited to, at expiration or termination of this Agreement), CONSULTANT 
agrees to provide the Work Product to DISTRICT in a readable, transferable and usable 
electronic format generally acknowledged as being an industry-standard format for information 
exchange between computers (e.g., Word file, Excel spreadsheet file, AutoCAD file).   

 
o. Confidentiality of Information – CONSULTANT shall keep in strict confidence all 

confidential, privileged, trade secret, and proprietary information, data and other materials in 
any format generated, used or obtained by DISTRICT or created by CONSULTANT in 
connection with the performance of the Work under this Agreement (the “Confidential 
Material”). CONSULTANT shall not use any Confidential Material for any purpose other than 
the performance of the Work under this Agreement, unless otherwise authorized in writing by 
DISTRICT. CONSULTANT also shall not disclose any Confidential Material to any person or 
entity not connected with the performance of the Work under this Agreement, unless otherwise 
authorized in advance in writing by DISTRICT. If there is a question of whether  Confidential 
Material is protected from disclosure or is a public record or in the public domain, the party 
considering disclosure of such material shall consult with the other party concerning the 
proposed disclosure. 

 
Unless otherwise directed in writing by DISTRICT, upon contract completion or termination, 
CONSULTANT must destroy all Confidential Materials (written, printed and/or electronic) and 
shall provide a written statement to DISTRICT that such materials have been destroyed. 

 
p. Assignment – CONSULTANT shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 

obligations under this Agreement without DISTRICT'S prior written consent, which shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. A change in control of CONSULTANT constitutes an assignment 
under this Agreement. Any unauthorized assignment or transfer of this Agreement or any rights 
or obligations thereunder, shall be void and constitutes ground for immediate termination of 

Page 83 of 132



                                                                           Page 5 of 5 

 

this Agreement by DISTRICT. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the Parties 
and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

 
q. No Waiver of Rights – Any waiver at any time by either party of its rights as to a breach or 

default of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver as to any other breach or default. 
No payment by DISTRICT to CONSULTANT shall be considered or construed to be an 
approval or acceptance of any Work or a waiver of any breach or default. 
 

By signing below, the parties have read and agreed to the Standard Terms and Conditions. 

DISTRICT:      CONSULTANT: 

_______________________________ ________________________________  
                      (Signature)               (Signature) 
  

Print:  ___________________________  Print: ____________________________ 

Title: ____________________________                  Title: ____________________________ 
 
 

Page 84 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.3 
Discussion on mandated Service Line Inventory 

  

Page 85 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM VI.3 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Tom R. Gray 
Date: September 10, 2024 
Subject: Discussion on mandated Service Line Inventory 

Recommendation: 
Informational item only – staff has no recommendation. 
Discussion: 
The United States Environmental Protection Agency’s Lead and Copper Rule Revisions 
(LCRR) requires all water purveyors to develop an initial inventory of the material types 
of all their water service lines and include information sourced and public accessibility.  
This includes the customer’s side (customer-owned) of the water service line. This 
information must be submitted by October 13, 2024. Their aim is to strengthen the LCR 
to better protect communities from the impacts of lead exposure. 
 
FOWD staff developed and submitted a plan to the State Water Resources Control Board 
– Division of Drinking Water (DDW) to comply with the requirements of the LCRR.  
The plan was approved by the DDW and is being implemented by FOWD staff.  Staff 
is on track to complete the plan and submit information in time for compliance.  
 
Inspections and records review have indicated that no FOWD owned, or customer 
owned lead service lines exist in the FOWD service area. 
 
Policy Implications: 
None. 

Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
 

Page 86 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.4 
Discussion and possible action on additional funding for 2024 expenses 

Page 87 of 132



 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM VI.4 
REGULAR Board Meeting on September 16, 2024 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Tom R. Gray 
Date: September 12, 2024 
Subject: Discussion and possible action on additional funding for 2024 expenses  

Recommendation: 
Authorize the General Manager to transfer $14,000 from the contingency fund to cover 
2024 expenses as detailed below. 
Discussion: 
Aggregate, Sand & Cutback (E24SMSA) 
The Board approved 2024 funding for Aggregate, Sand, & Cutback is $27,500 and the 
cost to date is $23,574.43. FOWD anticipates ending the year with a total cost of 
$32,500.  Staff requests to transfer $5,000 from the contingency fund to cover Aggregate, 
Sand, & Cutback.   
Equipment Maintenance (E24EMEM) 
The Board approved 2024 funding for Equipment Maintenance is $15,500 and the cost to 
date is $7,486.93. FOWD anticipates ending the year with a total cost of $17,500.  Staff 
requests to transfer $2,000 from the contingency fund to cover Equipment Maintenance.   
Equipment Repairs (E24EMER) 
The Board approved 2024 funding for Equipment Repairs is $15,000 and the cost to date 
is $13,868.22. FOWD anticipates ending the year with a total cost of $20,000.  Staff 
requests to transfer $5,000 from the contingency fund to cover Equipment Repairs.  
Other Maintenance Equipment (A24MEOM) 
The Board approved 2024 funding for Other Maintenance Equipment is $5,000 and the 
cost to date is $1,125.11. FOWD has a vehicle with a lift gate that is currently inoperable.  
The cost to replace the lift gate is approximately $6,000. FOWD anticipates ending the 
year with a total cost of $7,000.  Staff requests to transfer $2,000 from the contingency 
fund to cover Other Maintenance Equipment. 
Policy Implications: 
None. 

Fiscal Impact: 
This fund transfer will decrease the 2024 contingency fund by $14,000. 
 

Page 88 of 132



September 16, 2024 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VII.1 

September 18, 2024 / SJWD Board Meeting / SJWD Office 

Page 89 of 132



Page 90 of 132



Page 91 of 132



Page 92 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VII.2 
September 21, 2024 / Fair Oaks Chicken Festival, Fair Oaks Park 

 

 
 
 

Page 93 of 132



Page 94 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VIII.2 

Regional Water Authority (RWA) 

 

  

  

 

Page 95 of 132



Page 96 of 132



Page 97 of 132



Page 98 of 132



September 16, 2024 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VIII.3 

Sacramento Water Forum 

Page 99 of 132



Page 100 of 132



Page 101 of 132



Page 102 of 132



Page 103 of 132



Page 104 of 132



Page 105 of 132



Page 106 of 132



Page 107 of 132



Page 108 of 132



Page 109 of 132



Page 110 of 132



Page 111 of 132



Page 112 of 132



Page 113 of 132



Page 114 of 132



Page 115 of 132



Page 116 of 132



Page 117 of 132



Page 118 of 132



Page 119 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.1 
Maintenance Work Report 

 

 
 

Page 120 of 132



2024 METERED WATER ANALYSIS
Information Item

Total

1" 1.5" 2" 3" 4" 6" 8" 10"
13,327 601 303 13 17 9 4 3

2 0 1 0 35 41 23 1

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
SW 237.54 291.39 368.35 485.21 832.29 1,155.76 1,359.83 1,232.23 5,962.60
GW 109.87 31.73 30.87 39.83 80.53 94.19 120.91 137.12 645.05
CWD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 347.41 323.12 399.22 525.04 912.82 1,249.95 1,480.74 1,369.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,607.65

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2024 32% 10% 8% 8% 9% 8% 8% 10% 10%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2024 347.41 323.12 399.22 525.04 912.82 1,249.95 1,480.74 1,369.35 6,607.65
2013 401.21 428.28 661.68 839.24 1,340.13 1,495.23 1,741.64 1,631.80 8,539.21

% 13.41 24.55 39.67 37.44 31.89 16.40 14.98 16.08 22.62

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Average
2024 76 75 87 118 199 281 322 298 182

SUBJECT:

2

2024 Water Supply  - units of production: acre-feet (AF)

0
Institutional 
Irrigation
Fire

STATUS:

32 4

13,689

152
3

35672474

Maintenance Collection

Service Count - by service type

2

0

9 0

0

97

0

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT

Not Yet Connected VacantShared Meter                  
Offices CommercialShared Meter Residential

259

305

0

0

SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 REGULAR MEETING
GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Disconnected

REPORT AS OF:

Parcel Count -  by water service connection status

Total

Total

12,993
6230

0 0
11

0Single Family 
Multi Family 
Commercial
Industrial

15
0
1

12,826
620
293

Not Metered

14,380
14,277

Drought Reduction By Volume  - acre-feet (AF)

Residential Water Use  - residential gallons per-capita per day (R-GCPD)1

223
99

Service Count  -  by meter size

14,151

101

Meter

209 20
103Subtotal

103

1 Based on population of 36,226 and 75% of Water Supply used for Residential

Metered

Groundwater Supply  - percentage (%)

August 31, 2024

 Connected  

Total
14,277

14,591

Active

0
90

No Meter

Page 121 of 132



            Date Address Type

AMR Replacements Monthly Total                       67 AMR / R900i #

8/1/2024 5212 BLOSSOMWOOD CT 1579849216

8/1/2024 5225 LINCOLN VILLA WAY 1579831080

8/1/2024 7501 SUNSET AVE 1579256982

8/1/2024 7507 WESTOVER CT 1580887400

8/1/2024 4409 MONTCURVE BLVD 1579075854

8/1/2024 4160 BROOKHILL DR 1579096932

8/1/2024 4531 OAK GLEN WAY 1579076592

8/1/2024 4611 OAK GLEN WAY 1579094328

8/1/2024 4571 OXBOW RIDGE PL 1580814922

8/1/2024 4581 OXBOW RIDGE PL 1580816770

8/5/2024 8858 EVENING STAR CT 1579853890

8/8/2024 4847 KITTY HAWK ST 1577328432

8/8/2024 9023 LEEDY LN 1577266960

8/8/2024 4913 SKYWAY DR 1574027772

8/8/2024 4936 SKYWAY DR 1574016682

8/8/2024 8996 LEEDY LN 1574611950

8/8/2024 4801 SQUADRON CT 1574019212

8/8/2024 8585 HILTON WAY 1580839632

8/8/2024 9005 PHOENIX AVE 1574031004

8/8/2024 5201 TUCSON CIR 1574031732

8/8/2024 5209 WAGON WAY 1574008368

8/8/2024 5232 SIMONE PL 1574006704

8/8/2024 8908 BEDFORD AVE 1579775856

8/8/2024 8924 AMERIGO AVE 1578385768

8/8/2024 5612 NORWAY DR 1579843144

8/8/2024 5105 OLEAN ST 1574025488

8/8/2024 9196 MADISON GREENS LN 1579094672

8/8/2024 5305 FLYWAY DR 1574019190

8/8/2024 5359 FLYWAY DR 1574025484

8/8/2024 8024 GLENBAR WAY 1578430534

      Monthly Maintenance Work Report

 AUGUST 2024 Page 1 of 5
Page 122 of 132



            Date Address Type

8/8/2024 8056 HIDDEN VIEW CIR 1579097446

8/8/2024 8617/8619 WINDING WAY 1577328450

8/8/2024 8510 ROLLING GREEN WAY 1577334618

8/8/2024 4841 SHAMROCK DR 1579088758

8/9/2024 9062 HIGH FLIGHT CT 1574413522

8/9/2024 8933/8935 LEEDY LN 1579076068

8/9/2024 5445 YDRA CT 1579093518

8/9/2024 7990 GLENBAR WAY 1574028056

8/9/2024 7979 VIA ROMA DR 1574029792

8/9/2024 8072 ARCHER AVE 1574030628

8/9/2024 8123-8127 PLUMERIA AVE 1579255362

8/9/2024 8140/8142 PLUMERIA AVE 1574029774

8/9/2024 4420 BIJAN CT 1574023610

8/9/2024 4505 CHICAGO AVE 1574030616

8/9/2024 8245 PLUMERIA AVE 1574028052

8/13/2024 9050 SUNSET AVE 1580853980

8/20/2024 4529 CAHUENGO CT 1577278584

8/20/2024 9040 LA SERENA DR 1574028034

8/20/2024 8911 VISAGE CIR 1579090468

8/20/2024 8830 BARRISTER LN 1579784850

8/20/2024 4420 MARTSMITH WAY 1574016664

8/20/2024 8842 WINDING WAY 1579254804

8/20/2024 4101 DETERMINED CT 1574029778

8/20/2024 8731 CURRAGH DOWNS DR 1579249596

8/20/2024 8820 TRIPLE CROWN CT 1579249614

8/23/2024 8381 FRIAR TUCK WAY 1579094692

8/23/2024 8418 RUGGLES CT 1577333386

8/28/2024 4500 STONEWALL DR 1576335328

8/28/2024 4545 OLIVEGATE DR 1576340400

8/28/2024 9160 MADISON AVE 1579249602

8/28/2024 5332 RIMWOOD DR 1576349330

8/28/2024 4900-4948 STAMAS LN 1574028058

8/28/2024 4928 WINDSOR VILLAGE LN 1574024520

8/28/2024 4645 PLANTATION DR 1577302368

8/29/2024 7142 SUNSET AVE 1576348450

8/29/2024 4839 VIR MAR ST 1574028044

 AUGUST 2024 Page 2 of 5
Page 123 of 132



            Date Address Type

8/30/2024 4914 GASTMAN WAY 1568528782

Meters Replaced Monthly Total                      79 Meter # Size 

8/1/2024 7501 SUNSET AVE 61336724 1.5

8/1/2024 7705 MAGNOLIA AVE 16411275 1

8/5/2024 3786 FAIR HILL RD 61336718 1.5

8/5/2024 3796 FAIR HILL RD 61336730 1.5

8/5/2024 8117/8119 DESERET AVE 61336720 1.5

8/5/2024 8121/8123 DESERET AVE 61336722 1.5

8/6/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61102067 2

8/6/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336475 2

8/6/2024 8125 COUNTRY VISTA LN 61336477 2

8/7/2024 7524 PINERIDGE LN 61336470 2

8/7/2024 5810 PECAN AVE 61336467 2

8/7/2024 9160/9200 MADISON AVE 61336476 2

8/7/2024 5810 PECAN AVE 61336479 2

8/7/2024 5515 MAIN AVE 61336480 2

8/8/2024 4914-4924 VIR MAR ST 61336473 2

8/8/2024 10239 FAIR OAKS BLVD 61336721 1.5

8/12/2024 4957 VIR MAR ST 61336471 2

8/12/2024 4307 NEW YORK AVE 61336478 2

8/12/2024 4914-4924 VIR MAR ST 61336472 2

8/12/2024 4914-4924 VIR MAR ST 61336474 2

8/14/2024 4825 HAZEL AVE 61336466 2

8/14/2024 7840 MADISON AVE 61336468 2

8/14/2024 4301 SUNRISE BLVD 61336461 2

8/14/2024 4343 SUNRISE BLVD 61336464 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336456 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336457 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336458 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336459 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336460 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336462 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336463 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336465 2

8/15/2024 8780 MADISON AVE 61336469 2

 AUGUST 2024 Page 3 of 5
Page 124 of 132



            Date Address Type

8/19/2024 11427 FAIR OAKS BLVD 61336455 2

8/20/2024 4466-4510 SAN JUAN AVE 61336454 2

8/20/2024 10511-10519 FAIR OAKS BLVD 61336452 2

8/21/2024 4928 VIR MAR ST 61336451 2

8/27/2024 8541 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553871 1

8/27/2024 8545 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553872 1

8/27/2024 8537 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553873 1

8/27/2024 8533 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553870 1

8/27/2024 8549 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 16411312 1

8/27/2024 8548 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553864 1

8/27/2024 8513 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553866 1

8/27/2024 8521 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553869 1

8/28/2024 8512 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553851 1

8/28/2024 8504 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553845 1

8/28/2024 8528 ANNETTE ENGEL WAY 17553844 1

8/28/2024 8515 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553854 1

8/28/2024 8524 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553840 1

8/28/2024 8516 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553865 1

8/28/2024 8508 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553867 1

8/28/2024 8543 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553839 1

8/28/2024 8501 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553852 1

8/28/2024 8519 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553850 1

8/28/2024 8540 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553849 1

8/28/2024 8679 CREEKWOOD WAY 17553848 1

8/28/2024 8509 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553847 1

8/28/2024 8517 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553853 1

8/28/2024 8532 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553843 1

8/28/2024 8536 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553842 1

8/28/2024 8958 QUAIL GLEN CT 17553859 1

8/28/2024 10542 FAIR OAKS BLVD 17553860 1

8/28/2024 8959 QUAIL GLEN CT 17553862 1

8/29/2024 8520 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553787 1

8/29/2024 8500 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553778 1

8/29/2024 8504 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553777 1

8/29/2024 8528 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553776 1

8/29/2024 8673 CREEKWOOD WAY 17553868 1

 AUGUST 2024 Page 4 of 5
Page 125 of 132



            Date Address Type

8/29/2024 8523 CREEKWOOD WAY 17553841 1

8/29/2024 8525 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553788 1

8/29/2024 8518 CREEKWOOD WAY 17553783 1

8/29/2024 8547 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553775 1

8/29/2024 8510 DOMINIQUE CT 17553790 1

8/29/2024 8500 DOMINIQUE CT 17553789 1

8/29/2024 8501 DOMINIQUE CT 17553786 1

8/29/2024 8520 DOMINIQUE CT 17553785 1

8/29/2024 8505 HANS ENGEL WAY 17553784 1

8/29/2024 8528 CREEKWOOD WAY 17553863 1

Leaks Monthly Total                         8 Detail

8/1/2024 4421 PLANTATION 1" SETTER LEAK

8/2/2024 9160 MADISON AVE T-MAIN LEAK

8/15/2024 8700 CASA DEL RIO 1" POLY SVC LEAK

8/20/2024 5221 LINCOLN VILLA WAY 1" COPPER SVC LEAK

8/27/2024 5200 RAVINE VIEW LN 1" COPPER SVC LEAK

8/28/2024 5305 HIBISCUS DR 1" COPPER SVC LEAK

8/28/2024 4444 SAN JUAN AVE 1" COPPER SVC LEAK (DAMAGE)

8/28/2024 5200 PRIMROSE DR MAIN VALVE LEAK

Distribution Repairs Monthly Total                         4 Detail

8/7/2024 4421 PLANTATION DR 1" SETTER REPLACE

8/21/2024 9160 MADISON AVE T-MAIN REPAIR

8/26/2024 5221 LINCOLN VILLA WAY 1" SVC REPAIR

8/28/2024 4444 SAN JUAN AVE 1" SVC REPAIR (DAMAGE)

System Upgrades Monthly Total                         3 Detail

8/1/2024 7501 SUNSET AVE NEW 1.5" METER

8/5/2024 4802 SAN JUAN AVE NEW 1.5" METER

8/21/2024 8700 CASA DEL RIO 1" SVC UPGRADE

Year to Date

568

91

WATER MAIN VALVES MAINTAINED YTD

FIRE HYDRANTS MAINTAINED YTD

System Maintenance

 AUGUST 2024 Page 5 of 5
Page 126 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.2 
Capital Projects Status Report 

  

 
 

Page 127 of 132



Agenda Item X.2

2024 Year-to-Date Total Project

Project Description 
 2024 Approved 

Budget   
 Budget 

Transfers  2023 C/F** 
 Adjusted Budget 

Amount  
 Year-to-Date-

Expenses Remaining Funds 

YTD 
Percent $ 
Expended

Percent 
Completed

Total 
Budget/Fund to 

Date
Total Expenses 

to Date
Total Project 

Remaining Fund

Total Project 
Percent $ 
Expended

 Prior Years 
Expenses (WIP 

Projects) Project Status Comments
1 New York Well Design (C24WTNYWD) -$                           -$            23,404$         23,404$                   858.30$                 22,546$                   4% 96% 365,546$            343,001$           22,546$             94% 342,142$              Design plans are being revised by consultant per FOWD feedback.
2 New York Well Drilling & Equipment (C24WTNYWDE) 2,940,000                 -               -                  2,940,000                32,007.40             2,907,993                1% 50% 3,855,744          947,751             2,907,993          25% 915,744                 Delivery of pump, motor, and 3R valves planned for January 2025. 
3 Skyway Drilling & Equipment (C24WTSDE) -                             -               341,966         341,966                   331,485.06           10,481                      97% 99% 2,762,903          2,752,421          10,481               100% 2,420,936             The project is complete.  Work left to be done involves paperwork for the grant.
4 Northridge Well Replacement - Design (C24WTNWRD) 450,000                     450,000                   16,445.39             433,555                   4% 0% 450,000              16,445                433,555             4% Design is underway.
5 Northridge Well Replacement - Equipping (C24WTNWRE) 1,450,000                 1,450,000                -                         1,450,000                0% 0% 1,450,000          -                      1,450,000          0%
6 Gum Ranch Tank Site (C24WTGRTS) 214,000                     -               56,335            270,335                   471.01                   269,864                   0% 14% 317,700              47,836                269,864             15% 47,365                   

Subtotal Wells & Tanks 5,054,000$               -$            421,705$       5,475,705$             381,267.16$         5,094,438$             9,201,892$        4,107,454$        5,094,438$       3,726,187$           

7 Hydrant Upgrades (C24TDHU) 250,000$                  -$            3,200$            253,200$                 153,382.51$         99,817$                   61% 70% 253,200$            153,383$           99,817$             61% -$                       
8 New Hydrants (C24TDNH) 80,000                       80,000                      25,900.33$           54,100                      32% 70% 80,000                25,900                54,100               32%
9 Minor Main Upgrades (C24TDMU) 75,000                       -               -                  75,000                      21,380.00             53,620                      29% 50% 75,000                21,380                53,620               29%

10 Services Upgrade (C24TDSU) 538,200                     -               -                  538,200                   265,661.73           272,538                   49% 70% 538,200              265,662             272,538             50%
11 Developer's Paid - Service Installation and Main Line Projects* 59,100                       -               112,558         171,658                   16,496.27             155,162                   10% 10% 241,302              86,140                155,162             36% 69,644                   

12 Replacement of Four Distribution Sampling Stations (C24TDSS) 20,000                       -                  20,000                      2,235.23                17,765                      11% 25% 20,000                2,235                  17,765               11%

Subtotal 1,022,300$               -$            115,758$       1,138,058$             485,056.07$         653,002$                 1,207,702$        554,700$           653,002$           69,644$                 

13 Hazel Ave. Widening Project Phase III (C24TD255) -$                           -$            1,976$            1,976$                      -$                       1,976$                      0% 100% 1,481,632$        1,479,656$        1,976$               100% 1,479,656$           Complete.
14 ARV's and Blow-offs (C24TDARV) 50,000                       -               -                  50,000                      8,436.22                41,564                      17% 50% 50,000                8,436                  41,564               17%

15 Replace 12" Steel Main New York Ave. (C24TDNYASW) 2,132,000                 -               -                  2,132,000                24,168.99             2,107,831                1% 5% 2,376,800          268,969             2,107,831          11% 244,800                 Contractor is continuing work on project, having already completed main installation from New York wellsite towards Winding 
Way.

16 T-Main Replacement Phase I (Skyway Dr. to Hazel) (C24TDSH) 145,000                     -               -                  145,000                   92.35                     144,908                   0% 0% 145,000              92                        144,908             0% Revising order of T-main replacement to coincide with a Sac County overlay on Madison Ave. between Blue Oak and Winding 
Oak Dr. RFP has been developed for soliciting design services.

17 County Overlay Project- Madison, Kenneth to McKay (C24TDHAKM) 100,000                     -               -                  100,000                   -                         100,000                   0% 0% 100,000              -                      100,000             0% Sacramento County DOT reported this portion of their project is being moved to the spring of 2026.
18 Greenvale Improvements (C24TDGI) 55,000                       -               -                  55,000                      -                         55,000                      0% 0% 55,000                -                      55,000               0%

19 Riverfront Lane Service Upgrade (C24TDRFL) 90,900                       -               -                  90,900                      1,330.30                89,570                      1% 8% 100,001              10,431                89,570               10% 9,101                     Easements and exhibits have been drafted for review and resident's signatures.  Staff reviewing options for main replacement.

Subtotal 2,572,900$               -$            1,976$           2,574,876$             34,028$                 2,540,848$             4,308,433$        1,767,585$        2,540,848$       1,733,557$           

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 8,649,200$               -$            539,439$       9,188,639$             900,351.09$         8,288,288$             14,718,027$      6,429,739$        8,288,288$       5,529,388$           

20 AMR Replacement (M24MMAMR) 250,000$                  -$            39,650$         289,650$                 92,660.36$           196,990$                 32% 70% 289,650$            92,660$             196,990$           40% On-going. 

21 Large Meter Replacement (M24MMLMR) 25,000                       -               -                  25,000                      263.30                   24,737                      1% 0% 25,000                263                     24,737               1%

22 Meter Replacement (M24MMMR) 140,000                     -               28,959            168,959                   75,048.81             93,910                      44% 70% 168,959              75,049                93,910               44% On-going. 

23 Meter Installation - Residential (M24MMMRES) 5,000                         -               -                  5,000                        6,056.68                (1,057)                      121% 100% 5,000                  6,057                  (1,057)                121% On-going. 

METER MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 420,000$                  -$            68,609$         488,609$                 174,029.15$         314,579$                 488,609$           174,029$           314,579$           -$                       

24 10317 Corporate Yard Project (A24BUMQDC) 200,000$                  -$            -$                200,000$                 91,390.13$           108,610$                 46% 35% 394,500$            285,890$           108,610$           72% 194,500$              G/A continues working on resubmitting plans to Sacramento County.  FOWD is paying County review fees as they are being 
received. 

25 10326 Admin. Building (A24BUNB) 5,000$                       -$            -$                5,000$                      -$                       5,000$                      0% 0% 5,000$                -$                    5,000$               0%

GRAND TOTAL 9,274,200$               -$            608,048$       9,882,248$             1,165,770.37$     8,716,477$             15,606,135$      6,889,658$        8,716,477$       5,723,888$           

*New Business development pays for services rendered (this item is a pass through).
**2023 Carryforward funding approved by the Board on January 16, 2024 and March 18, 2024 Regular Board Meetings.
***New York Well 12-inch Replacement Project includes both North and South of Main.

 FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT         
CAPITAL PROJECTS STATUS UPDATE: August 31, 2024 

Page 1 of 1

Page 128 of 132



 

 

September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.3 
Authorizations of Additional Funding 

 

Page 129 of 132



GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
September 16, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Report as of August 31, 2024

X.3 Authorizations of Additional Funding

Accounting for 2024 Contingency Fund
Project No. E24CONT

Beginning Amount
Date Description Balance Transferred Ending Balance

1/1/2024 Beginning Balance 200,000.00$       -$  200,000.00$        
1/16/2024 SWRCB - Water System Fees 200,000.00         (500.00)                199,500.00          
1/16/2024 Deferred Compensation 199,500.00         (4,250.00)             195,250.00          
3/18/2024 Hazel Avenue Project #2004 195,250.00         (29,616.00)           165,634.00          
3/18/2024 Gum Ranch Unit 2 Project #1607 165,634.00         (41,969.00)           123,665.00          
8/19/2024 Property Insurance 123,665.00         (7,800.00)             115,865.00          
8/19/2024 Aggregate, Sand & Gravel 115,865.00         (2,500.00)             113,365.00          
8/19/2024 Equipment & Tools Rentals 113,365.00         (1,000.00)             112,365.00          
8/19/2024 Distribution Repairs 112,365.00         (7,500.00)             104,865.00          

Total from Contingency (95,135.00)$        

Funds Drawn from Reserves

Transmission Main Break at the Corner of Pershing Ave. and Chestnut Ave. 325,000.00$       

Total from Reserves 325,000.00$       

Total Authorizations of Additional Funding 420,135.00$       

Page 130 of 132



September 16, 2024 
Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.5 
Claims Against District 

Page 131 of 132



Processing of Claims

24-01 6/14/2024 None 
Given

Claim # Settlement 
Amount

JPIA 
Contacted

?

$0.00Property

Date Claim 
Received

Information Item
August 31, 2024

Yes

REPORT AS OF:

DISTRICT CLAIMS RECEIVED

Claim StatusClaim 
Amount

STATUS:

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT

Type of Claim

SUBJECT:

SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 REGULAR MEETING
GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Denied

Page 132 of 132


	Agenda
	III.1a Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of August 19, 2024
	III.2 Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of August 2024
	III.3 File Investment Report for the month of July 2024
	III.4 Accept and File Monthly Financial Expense Report for the month of August 2024
	III.5 Approval of Warrants
	III.6 Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of August 2024
	III.7 Accept and File Board Expense Report for the month of August 2024
	IV.1 Letter dated September 11, 2024 to all candidates running for the FOWD Board ofDirectors in the November 2024 General Election, California Fair PoliticalPractices Commission, and others
	V.1 Update and discussion on the New York Water Main Project Phase I
	V.3 Update and discussion on FOWD Administration Building Parking Signs
	V.4 Update on the “Request for Qualifications” to select a new Special District FinancialAuditor – prior Auditor termed out in accordance with District policy
	VI.1 Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of August 2024
	VI.2 Discussion and possible action on the Transmission MainPhase I Design Request for Qualifications
	VI.3 Discussion on mandated Service Line Inventory
	VI.4 Discussion and possible action on additional funding for 2024 expenses
	VII.1 September 18, 2024 / SJWD Board Meeting / SJWD Office
	VII.2 September 21, 2024 / Fair Oaks Chicken Festival, Fair Oaks Park
	VIII.2 Regional Water Authority (RWA)
	VIII.3 Sacramento Water Forum
	X.1 Maintenance Work Report
	X.2 Capital Projects Status Report
	X.3 Authorizations of Additional Funding
	X.5 Claims Against District



